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Board of Directors Registered Office Address

Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta Shopping Mall, Phase-1, DLF City, Gurugram,
Director & Manager Haryana-122002.

(DIN—=07951272)
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Mr. Manoj Kumar Duo
Director Alankit Assignments Limited
(DIN - 02794998) 'Alankit House' 2E/21, Jhandewalan

Extension, New Delhi - 110055.
Ms. Dinaz Madhukar

Director Statutory Auditors
(DIN —03453167)
(resigned w.e.f. 12.06.2020) S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Golf View, Corporate Tower-B, Sector-42,

Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Sector Road, Gurugram-122002, Haryand.

Independent Director
(DIN - 00102064)
(resigned w.e.f. 18.07.2019)

Company Secretary
Mr. Anuj Kushwaha

Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg (resighed w.e.f. 24.07.2019)
Independent Director . .
(DIN = 01153590 Chief Financial Officer

(resigned w.e.f. 18.07.2019) M. Hari Krishan Bansal

Mr. Raj Kumar Jain
Nominee Director
(DIN - 00026544)

(resigned w.e.f. 18.07.2019)

Mr. Giri Raj Shah
Non-Executive Director

(DIN: 03436135)

(appointed w.e.f. 23.07.2019)

Mr. Yogendra Negi
Non-Executive Director

(DIN: 08565147)

(appointed w.e.f. 30.07.2020)
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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 215" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 26™ AUGUST 2020
AT 10.00 A.M. AT 11 FLOOR, GATEWAY TOWER, DLF CITY, PHASE-III,
GURUGRAM - 122002, HARYANA, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 315t March 2020 together with the Reports of Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta
(DIN: 07951272). who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and any other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory amendment, modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) (‘the Act’), Mr. Giri Rqj
Shah, Director (DIN-03436135), who was appointed as an Additional
Director w.e.f. 23¢ July 2019 and who holds office up to the date of this
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act read with the
Arficles of Association of the Company and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section
160 of the Act signifying its infention to propose Mr. Giri Raj Shah as a
candidate for the office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and any other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder {including any statutory amendment, modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) {‘the Act'), Mr. Yogendra
Negi (DIN-08565147), who was appointed as an Additional Director
w.e.f., 30 July 2020 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act read with the Articles of
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Association of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notfice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act
signifying its intention to propose Mr. Yogendra Negi as a candidate for the
office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as d
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For DLF Emporio Limited

VU

Date :30.07.2020 Manoj Kumar Dua
Place : Gurugram Director

DIN: 02794998 N
‘%‘% e @ V
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL
INSTEAD OF HERSELF/HIMSELF IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.,
THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF INTENDED TO BE USED SHOULD REACH
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED
AND SIGNED NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME
FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

2. The requirement to place the matter relating to ratification of
appointment of Auditors by the members at every Annual General
Meeting has been done away by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
New Delhi vide its notification dated 7th May 2018. Accordingly, no
resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of S. R. Batliboi &
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory auditors of the Company,
who were appointed in the 18" Annual General Meeling (‘AGM’) of
the Company held on 28t September 2017,

3. The details of Director seeking re-appointment, in terms of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including Secretarial Standard-2) is annexed
hereto and forms part of this Notice.

4, The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
setting out the material facts concerning the business under ltem
no. 3 and 4 of the notice is annexed hereto and forms part of the
nofice.

5. Relevant documents and statutory registers are open for inspection af
the Registered Office of the Company at Shopping Mall, Phase-,
DLF City, Gurugram-122002 on all working days up to the date of the
AGM and shall also be available for inspection at the AGM.

6. Corporate member intending o send its authorized representative to
attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Beard
Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and vote on ifs
behalf af the meeting.

7. The facility for voting through polling paper in terms of Section 109 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder shali be
made available at the Annual Generdal Meeting.

8. The Company has appointed Mr, Harsh Oberoi, Company Secretary in
whole-time practice as Scrutinizer to scruiinize the polling process in
fair and transparent manner. Mr. Harsh Oberoi has given his consent
for such appointment,
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STATEMENT
[Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013]

Hem No. 3

The members may kindly note that pursuant to the provisions of Section 161
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thersunder {‘the Act’) read
with Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Giri Roj Shah, Director
(DIN-03436135), was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
w.e.f. 23d July 2019. Accordingly, Mr. Giri Raj Shah will hold office of Director
up to the date of ensuing Annual Generai Meeting {'AGM').

Mr. Giri Raj Shah has given a declaration to the effect that he is not
disqudlified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the
Act.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing
the candidature of Mr. Giri Raj Shah, Director, for the office of Director of the
Company and the Board of Directors in terms of the provisions of
Section 160 of the Act has recommended his appointment as Director of
the Company, liable to refire by rotation.

Information about the appointee:

Age: 62 Years

Qualifications: Graduate in Architecture from Sir J.J. College
of Architecture, Mumbai.

Experience: Mr. Shah had started his career with

Consulting Engineering Services Pvt. Ltd. (CES)
in the Year 1982 and was associated with
them till 1992. During his tenure with CES, he
worked extensively on projects based in
Muscat, Sultanate of Oman, and was posted
there between 1984 to 1991, Between 1992
and 1995 he worked with DLF Limited and was
associated with  their premium residential
projects ~ Beverly Parks 1 & 2 and
development of DLF Phase 5. He rejoined
DLF in 2004 and has been associated in the
development of all the Retail and
Commercial complexes ever since.

Terms and Conditions of | Liable to retire by rotation.
Appointment/
Re-appointment
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Details of remuneration | N.A.
sought to be paid

Date of first appointment | 23.07.2019
on the Board

Shareholding in the | NIL
Company

Relationship with  other | NIL
Directors and other KMPs

Number of Board Meetings | 6(Six)
altended during the year
(Financial Year 2019-20)

Other Directorship(s) 1. DLF City Cenire Limited - Director &
Manager

2. DLF Promenade Limited — Director

3. DLF Info Park (Pune) Limited — Director

Commitiee Positions in | Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
other Companies

DLF Promenade Limited - Member

Keeping in view his vast qualifications, experience, expertise and
knowledge, it will be in the interest of the Company that Mr. Giri Raj Shah, be
appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation.

All the documents as referred above shall be open for inspection by the
members during business hours on any working day at the Registered Office
of the Company and will also be available at the AGM.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives, except Mr. Giri Raj Shah, is concerned or interested,
finoncially or otherwise in the resolution set out at the item No. 3 of the
notice.

Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary
Resolution.
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Hem No. 4

The members may kindly note that pursuant to the provisions of Secfion 161
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (‘the Act’) read
with  Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Yogendra Negi
(DIN- 08565147), was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
w.e.f. 300 July 2020. Accordingly, Mr. Yogendra Negi will hold office of
Director up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting ("AGM').

Mr. Yogendra Negi has given a declaratfion to the effect that he is not

disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the
Act,

The Company has received a nofice in writing from a member proposing
the candidature of Mr. Yogendra Negi for the office of Director of the
Company and the Board of Directors in terms of the provisions of Section
160 of the Act has recommended his appointment as Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Information about the appointee:

| Age: 42 Years

Quualifications: Bachelor's degree in Hotel Management
from the Institute of Hotel Management,
Jaipur.

Experience: Mr. Negi has an experience of 19 years in

hotel & hospitality business. His  iast
assignment was as Assistant Training Manager
of Hyatt Regency, New Delhi. He is currently
working in DLF as Assistant Vice President,
Hospitality Operations.

Terms and Conditions of | Liable to retire by rotation.

Appointment/
Re-appeintment
Detdils of remuneration | N.A.
sought to be paid
Date of first appointment | 30.07.2020
on the Board
Shareholding in the | NiL
Company
Relationship with other | NIL
Directors and other KMPs
Number of Board Meetings | NIL
attended during the year
(Financial Year 2019-20)
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QOther Directorship(s) NIL

Committee Positions in | NiL
other Companies

Keeping in view his vast qualifications, experience, expertise and
knowledge, it will be in the interest of the Company that Mr. Yogendra Negi,
be appointed as Director liable to refire by rotation.

All the documents as referred above shall be open for inspection by the
members during business hours on any working day at the Registered Office
of the Company and will also be available at the AGM.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives, except Mr. Yogendra Negi, is concerned or interested,
financially or ofherwise in the resolution set out at the item No. 4 of the
notice,

Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary
Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For DLF Emporio Limited

Date :30.07.2020 Manoj Kumar Dua
Place : Gurugram Director
DIN: 02794998

U
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3)
of the Companies {(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U74920HR1999PLC0O34168
Name of the Company: DLF Emporio Limited

Registered office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana —
122 002.

Name of the member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folic No/ Client Id:
DP ID:

Il/We, being the member{s) of .................l Shares of the above named
Company, hereby appoini

T.Name: ...............
Address: ............
E-mail Id: ...
Sighature: ....ooovveinennen. , or failing him/her

2.NOME: i
AAress: oo
E-mail Id: e,
Signature: e or failing him/her

3.Name: o
AdAress: oo
E-mail Id: o
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me fus and on my/our
behalf at the 21s* Annual General Meeting of the Company, o be held on
Wednesday, 26t August 2020 at 10.00 A.M. at 11T Floor, Gateway Tower,
DLF Cily, Phase-lll, Gurugram~122002, Haryana and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resl
No.

Resolution

For #

Againsti#

Abstained#

Adoption of Avudited Financial
Statement as at 31t March 2020
together with Reporis of Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

Appoint a Director in place of
Mr.  Prashant  Gaurav  Gupta
(DIN:07951272), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

Appointment of Mr. Giri Raj Shah,
{DIN-03436135), as the Director of
Company, liable to retire by
rotation.

Appointment of Mr. Yogendra Nedi
(DIN-08565147), as the Direclor of
Company, liable to retire by
rotation.

Signed this ....... day of......... 2020.

Signature of Member

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:

Affix
Revenue
Stamp of

appropriate
value

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed
and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least forty
eight (48) hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty
and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4) #This is only optional. Please put ‘v’ or ‘%' in the appropriate column
against the resolutions indicated in the Box. if you leave ‘For/or
‘Against’ column blank against the resolufion, your Proxy willi be
entitled to vote in the manner as he/she deems appropriate.

5} Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the
meeting in person, if he/she so desire.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
21t Annual General Meeting - Wednesday, 26™ August 2020

1. Full Naome and Registered
Address of the Member
(in BLOCK LETTERS}

2. Full Name of the Proxy
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

3. Folio No. / DP Id ~ Client Id*

4. No. of Equity Shares held

B

| / We, Being the Registered Shareholder / Proxy tor the Registered
Shareholder* of the Company, hereby record my / our presence at
21t Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday,
26ih August 2020 at 10.00 AM. at 11™ Floor, Gateway Tower, DLF City,
Phase-lll, Gurugram - 122002, Haryana and af any adjournment(s) thereof.

Member's / Proxy's Signature

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form
**Strike off whichever is not relevant
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Details of the Direcior seeking re-appointment at the

Annual General Meeting

Name

Prashant Gaurav Gupta

Age

40 Years

Qualifications

B.Com. [Hons.), from Delhi University and B.Sc.
degree in Hospitality Management from Indira
Gandhi National Open University,

Experience

Mr. Gupta has rich experience of over 18 years
in hospitality and had a successful stint with ITC
Hotels in the past. His last assignment was as
Hotel Manager of flagship Hotel of ITC Limited.

Terms dand Conditions of
Appointment along with
details of remuneration
sought to be paid:

Liable to refire by rotation

Date of first appointment
on the Board

29/01/2019

Shareholding in the

Company:

Nil

Relationship with Other
Directors and other KMPs:

Nil

Number of Board
Meetings attended
during the year (Financial

Year 2019-20)

7 (Seven)

Other Directorship(s):

1. DLF Emporio Restaurants Limitedp and
2. Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Committee Positions in

other Companies

Securities Allotment Committee

DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited- Member
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To the Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 21t Annual Report on the
business and operations of the Company fogether with the audited financial

results for the Financial Year (FY) ended 31 March 2020.

Financial Resulls

(Z in Lakh)
i 2019-20 2018-19
Total income 23,071.46 25,226.62
Total Expenses 10,768.30 12,006.17
Profit before tax 12,303.16 13,220.45
Less: Tax Expenses
Current tax 2,853.33 3.553.04
Deferred tax credit (389.10) (105.50)
Net Profit 9.838.93 9.772.91

Review of Operations

During the FY 2019-20, total income has decreased from
T 25,226.62 lakh {previous year) to ¥ 23,071.46 lakh {current year) mainly due
to decrease in interest income. The expenses of the Company decreased
from T 12,006.17 lakh (previous year) to ¥ 10,768.30 lakh {current year)]. The
net profit of the Company stood at T 2,838.93 lakh (current year) against
T 9,772.91 lakh {previous year). The basic & diluted EPS for the FY 2019-20 is
Z 198.41/- as compared to T 197.07 /- in previous yedar.

About DLF Emporio Mall: India's first and finest Luxury Shopping Destination

DLF Emporio is a name truly synonymous with luxury. Exclusivity, ambient
spaces, state of the art unparalleled luxury retail and hospitality experiences
and uber luxe aesthetics are the signatures of this spectacular offering.
An environment that ensconces the best of global and Indian luxury brands,
DLF Emporio is a haven for luxury shoppers across India since only the finest
signature brands, designer labels and high-end lifestyle products co-exist
here.

A forerunner and a pioneer in the Indian Luxury Retail space, DLF Emporio is
solely responsible for putting India on the global luxury map.
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Known for creating unique and discerning luxury experiences and offering
best in class luxury services DLF Emporio has always created benchmarks in
excellence. As a validation of its distinction, DLF Emporio has been adjudged
an “lconic Project 2008" by Global Initiative for Restructuring Environment &
Management, “Best Shopping Centre” by the “Shoppers and Consumers
Insight” and “Images Group" from 2009-2012, “Most Admired Shopping
Centre of the year 2014" by CMO Asia and “Asia's best Real Estate Project”
by World Consulting & Research Corporation, “Retail Property of the year
(National}" by Franchise India at the Magpie Estate Awards 2017.
International Electrotechnical Commission Awards had accoladed the DLF
Emporio in-house magazine “The Wedding Issue 2014" by including it in its top
100 magazines of the country and bestowing a “Certificate of Merit” to “The
Festive Issue 2015",

Quilook

The members of the Company may kindly note that in light of the Corona
pandemic confining people within the boundaries of their homes, and luxury
retail sector remaining a predominantly in-store experience, the luxury
industry will be facing a challenging year ahead.

The global crisis has already resulted in a paradigm shift in consumer
behavior. People may be bent towards introspecting their demands and
make conscious spending decisions, specifically in the luxury industry. It will be
essential to thus, focus on meeting purposeful needs via efficient Omni-
channel strategies and generate meaningful content and intimate
experiences to inspire, engage and entice consumers.

In the year 2019, India witnessed a growth in the luxury products market
which was driven by a rising disposable income segment supplementing
purchasing decisions that were enabled by the power of technology.

This year, due to the Pandemic, the economy is undergoing a digital
revolution as people are spending maximum hours on their electronic
mediums to constantly be connected with the world.

Even if people aren’t readily buying now, it is important for us as well as our
retail partners to generate recall, to stand out in customers’ crowded
newsfeeds and keep them connected to the brand via driving engagement
and building anticipation for their product for immediate conversions and
store traffic post the Coronavirus situation settiing down.

The ideals and attitudes of luxury consumers will evolve to a certain extent
and they are likely to start seeking value over mere brand name. Buying
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sustainable brands, conscious buying, being a little more responsive toward
society can be foreseen. Hence, it's imperative that our retail partners
prepare themselves for the future, understand this and adapt accordingly.

Given the way the current situation is unfolding we expect the Luxury industry
to be hit both from a production & a consumption point of view. Since our
source markets are mainly Europe and America, we expect future product
ines & season collections to be impacted which can result in limited
inventory being available with the retailers for the better part of coming
financial year. It will take a while for organized luxury retail to recover given
the disrupted supply lines.

It's known from the history; each crisis leaves a long - termm impact and
Coronavirus is no exception. The outbreak of Covid-19 may move luxury
consumers to assess things from a different outlook. Lessons in resilience
learned during these times can power a sustainable recovery in 2021 and
beyond. This crisis may be fransforming the luxury industry for good, but it
could also be a transformation for the good.

Witnessing the increasing growth and competition especially in the “bridge to
luxury” segment in the recent past, gives us hope for a dynamic future for the
luxury market. Traditional “definitions” and “characteristics” of luxury are
evolving, thereby creating new opportunities for both existing players and
entrants.

Dividend

Your Board of Directors for the financial year under review, with a view to
conserve resources for future development and expansion have not
recommended any dividend on Equity Shares.

Reserves

Your Directors do not propose 1o fransfer any amount from the statement of
profit and loss to Reserves. Further, the Company has transferred ¥ 13,125
Lakh to General Reserve, being balance lying in Debenture Redemption
Reserve at the time of redemption of 10.90% Non-Convertible Debentures,

Material Changes and Commitment

There was no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year of the Company to which the financial statement relates and
the date of the Report.
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Changes in the nature of Business

There was no change in the nature of business during the financial year under
review.

Share Capital Structure

During the FY under review, there were no changes in the share capital
structure of the Company.

Commercial Mortigage Backed Securities (CMBS)

The Company had issued and allotted 5,250 Secured, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of 10 Lakhs each
having coupon rate of 10.90% per annum payable on monthly rests (NCDs)
under CMBS structure aggregating to % 525 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred and
Twenty Five Crores Only), which were listed with Bombay Stock Exchange
{BSE).

The Company vide its early redemption notice dated 18t April 2019 issued to
Axis Trustee Services Limited, had exercised its right to redeem all the
aforesaid NCDs on 22nd May 2019 in terms of Clause 2.5.1. (Early Redemption
Date) of Debenture Trust Deed dated 15 May 2014.

Pursuant to }he redemption, the Company had made application to the BSE
for delisting of the said NCDs. Accordingly, BSE vide its notice dated 25th June
2019 delisted the said NCDs w.e.f 26th June 2019.

Public Deposits

The Company has not accepted/renewed any public deposits during the
financial year under review.

Holding Company

Richmond Park Property Management Services Limited, DLF Cyber City
Developers Limited and DLF Limited are the holding Companies of your
Company and Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited is the
ultimate holding Company of your Company.

Subsidiary/Associate Companies/Joint Venture

During the FY under review, the Company does not have any
subsidiary/associate Companies/ joint ventures, therefore the provisions of
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Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

Scheme of Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of your Company at its meeting held on 25t February
2020, approved a scheme of amalgamation pursuant to Sections 230 to 232
and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, involving amalgamation of Richmond Park  Property
Management Services Ltd, the holding company (Transferor Company) with
the Company. The aforesaid scheme of amalgamation will, infer alia, enable
integration of business operations leading to operational synergies and also
result in reduction of the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances.
Members may also note that due to the COVID-19 pandemic nationwide
lockdown, the physical filing of the Petition was not possible therefore, your
Company has made online filing of the Petition along with its annexures
before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, at
Chandigarh {NCLT} for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Company. The appointed date will be opening hours of 15 April 2019 or such
other date as may be approved by the Hon'ble NCLT.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Quigo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m]
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies {(Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are given as Annexure-A hereto and form part of this Report.

Particulars of Employees

The Company has no employee whose particulars are required to be given
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 and any amendments made thereunder from time to time.

Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexval Harassment of
Women at Workplace

Your Company has been following a policy framed by DLF Limited, the
holding Company (DLF), on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace and matter connected therewith or
incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under "The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal)
Act, 2013". The Internal Compiaints Committee of DLF handle/ deal with the
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complaints pertaining to DLF and its subsidiaries. During the period under
review, no compiaint was received.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 our
Directors confirm that-

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concemn
basis;

(e} the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed
by the company and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

() the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

Secretarial Standards

During the FY under review, your Company has duly followed all applicable
Secretarial Standards, i.e. $S-1 and $5-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and 'General Meetings'.

Number of Meetings of the Board

During the FY under review, the Board met 7 {[seven} times ie. on
3d May 2019, 239 July 2019, 24t September 2019, 1 November 2019 &
29" January 2020, 25" February 2020 and 18t March 2020 as per the under
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noted attendance. The maximum interval between any two meetings was in
compliance with the provisions of the Act. The requisite quorum was present
at all the meetings.

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
Held Attended
dvuring
o I tenure
1. Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director 7 7
2. Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua Director 7 7
3. *Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent 1 1
Director
4. *Mr. Surinder Singh Chawl Independent 1 ]
Director
5. *Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Nominee 1 ]
Director
6. Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta Director & 7 7
Manager
7. **Mr. Giri Raj Shah Director 6 6

*Resigned as Director w.e.f. 18 July 2019.
*Appointed as Director w.e.f. 234 July 2019

Audit Committee*

During the FY under review, in terms of the provisions of section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company had an Audit committee consisting of
Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg and Ms. Dinaz Madhukar
as members. During the FY- 2019-20, 1{one) meeting was held on 39 May
2019, the attendance of which is as under and requisite quorum was present
in the meeting: -

S.No. Name of the Position No. of meetings
Members Held during Attended
| tenure

1. | *Mr. Surinder Singh | Chairman ] ]
Chawila

2. | *Mr. Santosh Kumar| Member 1 ]
Garg -

3. | Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Member ] 1

*Dissolved w.e.f. 234 July 2019.
*Resigned as Director w.e.f. 18" July 2019.
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Nomingalion and Remuneration Committee (NRC)*

During the FY under review, in terms of the provisions of section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company had an NRC consisting of Mr. Surinder
Singh Chawla, Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg and Ms. Dinaz Madhukar as
members. During the FY- 2019-20, 1{one) meeting was held on 3 May 2019,
the attendance of which is as under and requisite quorum was present in the

meeting: -
S.No. | Name of the Members Posiion |  No. of meetings
Held”during Aftended
1 tenure |
1. *Mr.  Surinder  Singh | Chairman 1 1
| Chawla
2. *Mr.  Sanfosh  Kumar Member 1 1
| Garg -
3. Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Member 1 1

# Dissolved w.e.f, 234 July 2019,
*Resigned as Director w.e.f. 18% July 2019.

The broad terms of reference are as under: -

1.

2.

To determine Remuneration Policy of the Company;

To recommend to the Board the remuneration, whether by way of salary,
perquisites, sitting fees, commission, stock options, sweat equity or in a
combination thereof or otherwise, payable to the Managing Director(s),
Whole-time Director(s) and other Directors, their relatives engaged in the
employment of the Company;

To recommend to the Board the remuneration, whether by way of salary,
perquisites, commission, retainership fee or otherwise, payable to
Directors for discharging the professional or other services otherwise than
in the capacity of Director;

To frame policies and compensation including salaries, incentives,
bonuses, promotion, benefits, stock options and performance targets for
executives of the Company;

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees:; :
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The Committee while formulating the policy, shall ensure that:

(a)the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully;

(b)relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks:

[c}remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the Company and its goais.

6. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the
Board;

/. Devising a policy on Board diversity: and

8. Ildentifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may
be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria iaid
down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

The salient features of NRC Policy are provided below:

1. A director should comply with the eligibility criteria stipulated in Articles of
Association of the Company and section 164 of the Act:

2. Tenure of directors, managing director or whole-time director or manager
and independent director:

3. Guiding principles of remuneration shall inter afia include quantitative and
qualitative assessments of performance, external market and Company
conditions to a balanced ‘fair’ outcome;

4. The premium paid on insurance taken by Company on behalf of its
directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary and any other employees for indermnifying them against any
liability shall not be treated as part of the remuneration.

The enfire NRC Policy can be viewed at
http://www.dIfemporio.com/investors/policies.html
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During the FY under review, the Company has made significant investments
in community welfare initiatives for the underprivileged through education,
environment, sanitation, capacity building, women safety and women
empowerment, senior citizen care and rural-centric interventions through DLF
Foundation and DLF Q.E.C. Educational Charitable Trust. The Company spent
the entire sum of ¥ 2.53 Crore approximately as enfitled towards CSR
activities/ projects/ programs for the FY 2019-20 in terms of Section 135 of the
Act read with Schedule VIl and the rules made thereunder.

A copy of “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” shall remain open for
inspection by the members during business hours on any working day at the
registered office of the Company and has been disctosed on Company's
website at the link hitp://www.dlfemporio.com/investors/policies.html. the
salient features of the CSR Policy are:

1. Constitution of CSR Committee and terms of reference of the Committee;

2. CSR activities shall be undertaken either by the Company and/or primarity
through DLF Foundation / DLF QEC Educational Charitable Trust / DLF QEC
Medical Charitable Trust or any other trust / registered society established
by the Company;

3. CSR Allocation;

4. Overall amount of CSR budget shall be approved by the Board upon
recommendation by CSR Committee:

3. CSR activities o be undertaken by the Company:

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed as Annexure-B.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company had established a Vigl Mechanism policy namely
“DLF Emporio Limited - Vigil Mechanism” under the supervision of the Audiit
Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was authorised to hear the grievances
of the stakeholders, employees and Directors and take steps to resoive the
issues amicably and take appropriate actions against offender and report
the same to the Audit Committee.

Consequent to dissolution of the Audit Committee, Ms. Dinaz Madhukar,
Director, nominated by the Board of Directors to play the role of the audit
committee for the purpose of vigil mechanism to whom stakeholders may
report their concerns.

Any grievances can be sent to Ms. Dinaz Madhukar at madhukar-
dinaz@dlf.in.
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Dissolution of Audit Committee and NRC

During the FY under review, consequent fo delisting of the NCDs of the
Company from BSE w.e.f. 26t June, 2019, your Board of Directors in terms of
the provisions of Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014 of the Act [amended vide nofification of Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated S5 July 2017], Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 [amended vide notification of
MCA dated 13th July 2017] and resignation of Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla and
Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent Directors from the Company, the
Board of Directors had dissolved the Audit Committee and NRC
w.e.f. 23d July, 2019.

in terms of Sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is
not required to constitute Audit Committee and NRC.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Commitiee)

During the FY under review, 2(two} meetings of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee were held on 3 May 2019 and 18t March 2020, the
attendance of which is as under and requisite quorum was present in all the
meetings: -

S. | Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
No.
Held Altended
during
L ~ tenure
1. | *Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Chairman i ]
(Chairman]) B .
2. | *Mr.  Surinder Singh Member 1 ]
Chawla
3. | Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Member / 2 2
l #Chairperson |
4, | Mr. Prashant Gaurav Member 1 1
Gupta B -
5. | Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua | Member/##Chairman 1 1
| 6. | **Mr. Giri Raj Shah Member - -

*Resigned as Director w.e.f. 18" July 2019.
#Appointed as Chairperson w.e.f. 239 July 2019.
# Appointed as Chairman w.e.f. 15t June 2020.
+ aAppointed as Member w.e.f. 15t June 2020.
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Auvditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with the rules made
thereunder, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP [301003E/E300005), Chartered Accountants
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five
consecutive years from the conclusion of 18" Annual General Meeting
(*AGM") fill the conclusion of 23d AGM vide shareholders resolution dated
28t September 2017.

Auditors' Report

There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer
in the Auditors' Report on the financials of the Company. The observations of
the Auditors in their report are self-explanatory and therefore, in the opinion
of the Directors, do not call for further comments.

Emphasis of Matter given in the Auditors’ Report on financial statement are
self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

Cost Records

in terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company was not
required to maintain cost records for the FY 2019-20.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies [Appoiniment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel} Rules, 2014, the Board had appointed AS & Associates, Company
Secretaries in Practice, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2019-20. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31t March
2020 is annexed as Annexure-C. The said Report does not contain any
qudiification, reservation and adverse remarks.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the FY under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor
have not reported any instances of frauds committed by the Company or its
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

During the FY under review, Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Mr. Santosh Kumar
Garg and Mr. Raj Kumar Jain resigned from the office of Director of the
Company w.e.f. 18h July 2019. The Board took note of the contribution made
by them during deliberation in the Board meetings held during their tenure.

Mr. Anuj Kushwaha resigned from the office of Company Secretary of the
Company w.e.f. 24th July 2019.

During the FY under review, the Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Giri Rgj
Shah as Director w.e.f. 2319 July 2019. Detailed profile of Mr. Giri Raj Shah forms
a part of the 215t Annual General Meeting Notice (AGM) of the Company.

The resolution pertaining to his appointment as Director of the Company on
the recommendation of the Board is being placed before the members for
their approval in the ensuing AGM of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta and
Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, Directors retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers themselves for re-appointment.
The Board recommended their re-appointment.

During the FY under review, no non-executive Directors of the Company had
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, other than the
sitting fees paid to independent directors and nominee director and
reimbursement of expenses incurred by non-executive Directors for the
purpose of attending meetings of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 31t March 2020 are Mr. Prashant
Gaurav Gupta, Director & Manager and Mr. Hari Krishan Bansal, Chief
Financial Officer.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Exiract of the Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9 as provided under
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed as Annexure-D.
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Pariculars of loans, guarantees or investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments, if any, covered under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, form part of the notes to the
financial statement provided in this Annual Report.

Transactions with Related parties

The Company has adequate procedures for the purpose of identification
and monitoring of related party(ies) and related party transactions. None of
the transactions with related parties falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of
the Act. Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) and 136{1} of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended are given in Form No. AOC-2 at
Annexure-E.

The Company's policy for related party tfransactions regulates the
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy intends
to ensure that proper reporting; approval and disclosure processes are in
place for all transactions between the Company and related parties. For
details on related party transactions, members may refer to the notes to the
financial statement.

Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, the Company has devised criteria for evaluation of the
performance of Directors. The Board has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, CSR Committee and Directors. The
evaluation process focused on various aspects of the Board functioning such
as composition of the Board, experience and competencies, performance of
specific duties and obligations & complionce management etc. Separate
exercise was caried out to evaluate the performance of Non-executive
Directors on parameters such as experience, attendance, acquaintance
with the business, effective participation, vision and strategy, contribution
and independent judgement.

Risk Management
The Company has an established risk management framework that enables

regular and active monitoring of business activities for identification,
assessment and mitigation of potential internal or external risks.
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The Company has partnered with DuPont, an independent agency to infuse
a safety culture info the organization. An approved inspection and audit
procedure are followed to monitor the safety performance of the Company
which included internal audits carried by the internal audit team of “SPAD”
and external audits conducted by DuPont, third party annual fire and
electrical safety audit and British Safety Council-Five Star Occupational
Health and Safety Audit.

The Board oversees the evaluation of risk management systems and also
seeks independent assurance on specific risks from internal audit and other
assurance reviews. The major risks identified by the businesses and functions
are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing
basis.

Internal Financial Controls and Systems

Internal financial controls are integral part of the risk management process
addressing amongst others financial and non-financial risks. The internal
financial controls have been documented and augmented in the day to day
business processes. Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial
contfrols is obtained through management reviews, self assessment,
contfinuous monitoring by functional experts as well as testing by the
Statutory/Internal Auditor during the course of their audits. Significant audit
observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Company's internal control system is commensurate with the nature, size
and complexities of operations.

Significant and material orders passed by requlators or courts

During the financial year under review, the Company has not received any
significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

Accolades
During the financial year under review, DLF Emporio Mall had been conferred
with the following awards:

¢ “Sword of Honour” by British Safety Council.

» 'LEED Platinum' certification by United States Green Building Council
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o ‘Shopping Mall of the Year' award by Real Estale & Infrastructure Round
Table & Awards 2019; and

¢ ‘Industrial Sector Safely Award (Retail & Malls) award by 1ISSSM
Security & Safety Excellence Award 2019.
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Annexure-‘A’'

Particulars required to be disclosed under Seclion 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
(i) The steps taken or impact on | Common area old sump-pump
conservation of energy; replaced with Energy efficient
new pumps
(ii) The steps taken by the company | Green Energy from open access
for utilizing alternate sources of | for the month of August-2019,
energy: December-2019, February-2020 &
March-2020
(iii} The capital investment on energy | T 4.95 Lakh for Energy efficient
conservation equipments; pumps.
e -
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
(i) | The efforts made towards technology absorption: NIL
(i} The benefits derived like product improvement, cost NIL
reduction, product development or import
substitution;
(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during NIL
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)-
(a)the details of technology imported;
(b)the year of import;
(c)whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d)if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place and the
reasons thereof; and
(iv) The expenditure incured on Research and NIL
_ Development,
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
~ (Amountin ¥)
2019-20 2018-1¢
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned in NIL NIL

terms of actual inflows during the

financial year; and
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(il

The Foreign Exchange outgo during NIL NIL
the financial year in terms of actual
outflows.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DLF Emporio Limited

VIPA

Prashant Gaurav Gupta Manoj Kumar Dua

Date : 01.06.2020 (Director & Manager) (Director)
Place: Gurugram DIN: 07951272 DIN: 02794998
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9
of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

a) Total amount to be spent for the
financial year:

b} Amount unspent, if any:

c) Manner in which the amount spent
during the financial year is detailed
below:

SI. Particulars Remarks
No B
1| A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, | DLF Emporio Limited has formulated its
including overview of projects or programs | CSR Activities fo integrate economic,
proposed fo be undertaken and a reference | environmental and social objectives
to the web-link to the CSR policy and| with its operations and growth for
projects or Programs common good as per Schedule Vil of
the Companies Act, 2013 and any
amendments or modifications made
thereto.
Weblink to the CSR Policy is :
http://www.dlfemporio.com/investors/pdfs
/CSR_Policy DLF_Emporio_Ltd.pdf
Copy of the CSR Policy is available for
inspection by the members during
business hours on any working day at
the registered office of the company
and will also be avdilable at the
B Annual General Meeting. |
2| The Composition of the CSR Commiittee 1) Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua (Chalrman)
2) Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta
(Member)
o 3) Mr. Giri Raj Shah (Member)
3| Average net profit of the company for last ¥ 126.49 Crores
| three financial years
4| Prescribed CSR Expenditure (lwo percent of ¥ 2.53 Crore (Approx.)
the amount as in item 3 above)
5| Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

¥ 2.53 Crore (Approx.)

Nil
As detailed below
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_m (T in Lakh)
DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE
Projects or Amount spent on the
programs projects or programs
{1) Local Amoun
area of t Outlay Cumulati
sectorin other (2) {Budge | Direct ve :\mz::m‘
Progra | CSR project specify the | 1) expendit Expendity pent -
] which the Direct or
No | mme or activity oject Is state and project | ure on Overhea | ®YP to throuah
Name identifled zwere d district or projects ds the im Iegmenﬁn
where progra | or reporting : enc
projects or | mme program period g agency
programs wise mes
was
uvndertaken
Promotion of
Educati | Education
on through DLF QEC
Promoti |Scholarships . Educational
1 on & Alied Education Pan india 200.00 200.00 200.00 Charitable
Progra | Nurturing Trust
mme Talent
Activities
wWomen women
Empow Saofety &
Women
erment wWomen Gurgaon DLF
3 & Empowerm Empower {Haryana} 53.00 53.00 53.00 Foundation
. ment
women entin
Safety Gurugram
Total 253.00 253.00 - 253.00

CSR Committee confirms the implementation and monitoring of C3SR Policy, is in
licy of the Company.

compliance with CSR objectives an

Prashant Gavrav Gupta
(Director & Manager)

DIN: 07951272

Manoj Kumar Dua
(Chairman of CSR

Committee)
DIN: 02794998
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Annexure-C

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT :
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2020
{Pursuant to section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.8 of the Companies
{Appointment ond Remuneration of Maonagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, -
The Members, -

M/s DLF Emporio Limited

(CiN:U74920HR1999PLC0O34168)

Shopping Matl, Phase- 1,

DLF City, Gurugram,

Haryana-122002

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by DLF Emporip Limited {hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory comgliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on Mareh 31, 2020 comptied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the
provisions of:

pe . !

{i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

{ii) The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 {‘SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

{iii) The Depositories Act, 2996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Tha Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct lnvestment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 {"SEBI Act'}:-
{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable}

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of iIndia (Prohibition of InSlder Trading)
Regulations, 2015; {Not Applicable)

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capltal and Dlsdosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; {Not Applicable)

S 1 1
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{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Sf‘lare ‘Based Employee Benefit)
Regulation, 2014; {Not Applicable)

{e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; {Not Applicable)

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Secuntl&s} Regulations,
2018; and (Not.Applicable)

(i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obllgatlon and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended. 0

(vi) The Company has constructed a shopping mall-cum entertainment complex named DLF
Emporio at Vasant Kunj, New Delhi and further leased out to various tenants. As informed by
the management, there is no sector specific law applicable to the Company;

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of india, and
{ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited {BSE).

There was no activity to be reported under the SCRA, Depositories Act, FEMA and the rules made
thereunder. Only debt securities (Non —convertible Debentures) of the Company were listed on BSE
as such, provisions of SEBI {Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable per
se.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. With regard to
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, as
applicable, it is stated that consequent upon delisting of debt securities from BSE and by virtue of
Netification dated 5 july, 2017, issued by the Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
exemptions were given to certain unlisted public companies from the appointment of independent
directors. In view of this, the Company has restructured its Board of Directors and the changes in the
compaosition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Except where for urgent
business necessity at a shorter notice, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent as per the
requirement of the Act read with Secretarial Standard-1. A system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and darifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

DLF Emporio Limited -31.03.2020




All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimbusly as recorded in
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and its operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period:

(i) there were no instances of Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat
equity, etc.

(ii) the Company has redeemed all the Non-convertible Debentures(NCDs) aggregating
Rupees 525 Crore as per the terms of issue on 22" May 2019 and made application to
the BSE for delisting of the said NCDs. Accordingly, BSE vide its notice dated 25™ June
2019 delisted the said NCDs w.e.f. 26" June 2019. Further, there was no instance of buy-
back of securities.

(iii) there was no instances of major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section
180 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) regarding Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc,, it is stated that in terms of the
board resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held
on 25" February 2020, the Board has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of
Richmond Park Property Management Services Limited , the Holding Company with the
DLF Emporio Limited with Appointed Date being opening hours of 1** April 2019 subject
to the approval of the National Company Law Tribunal or any other relevant authority
/forum having jurisdiction to sanction /approve the same. Except that there were no
other instances of Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc., and

(v) there were no instances of Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: New Delhi Signature: ﬂ‘w

Date: 24" April 2020 For AS& Associate; /
Company Secretaries
(Anil Setia)
Prop.
FCS No.: 2856
CP No.: 4956

UDIN of ICSI: FOD2856B000176656
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FORM MGT ¢

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financlal year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Compaonies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1} of the Company
(Managemeni & Adminisirafion) Rules, 2014.

Annexure-D

| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
i CInN U74920HRT999PLCO34148
ii Registration Dote 17/03/1999
fli Name of the Company DLF Empotic Limited
v Category/Sub-category of the Public Company. Limitled by Shares
Company
v Address of the Registered office Shopping Mall, Phase - 1, DLF City, Gurugram - 122 002,
& contact details Haryana, Tel No: 0124-4778121,
Contact Details : 0124-4778101/8121
E- mail ID: punjani-rp@dit.in
vi Whether listed company No
vii |Name, Address & contact details of | Alankit Assignmends Limited
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if 'Alankit House' 2E/21, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi -
any. 110085.
Contact Person- Mr. J.K, Singla : 011-42541940
Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turover of the company shall be
stated
$L No Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total tumover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 Real Estate Activities 681- Real Estate activities 100
with own or lease properties
1]] PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
$l No. | NAME & ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % QF APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ VOTING SECTION
ASSOCIATE RIGHTS
) Richrnond Park Property
mManagement Services Limited
Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase -| U74920HR1999PLCO34194 Holding 54.96% Sec2|46)
1, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana -
122 002.
2 |DLF Cyber City Developers Limited
{Holding Company of Richmond
Park Property Monagement Services
QLS V45201HR2006PLCO36074 Holding 4504% | Sec 2(44)
Regd. Office: 10th Floor, Gateway
Tower, DLF City. Phasedll, Gurugram,
Haryana - 122002,
3 DLF Limited {Holding Company of
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited)
101HR1 Holdi Sec 2(4
Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, 3rd L e o R clding 148}
Floor, Afjun Marg, OLF City, Phasa-l.
Gurugram - 122002,
4 |Rajdhani Investments & Agencies U65993GJ1972PTCO97502 Uitimate Holding Sec 2(44)
Private Limited, Regd. Cffice: MC
Shah House, 1/B, FF. Avantika
Society, Nr, Naronpura Railway
Crossing, Maranpurg, Ahmedabad-
380013.




w
{l) Category - wite Share

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share caplial Break vp as % of total Equity)

Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shores held al the beginning of the year

No, of Shates held af the end of the year

% change
during the

Damal

Physicat

Toldl

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shores

A. Promoh

1) Indion

q) Individual/HUF

B Ceniral Govt,

c)State Goviis.

a} Bodies Corporaies

42,59.000

100.00

49.59,000

49,59.000

2] Bank/H

fy Any other

SUB TOTAL(A) (1}

49,59,000

100,00

49.59,000

49.59.000

(2) Forelgn

1) NRI- Individuals

b} Other Inclividuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e} Any other

SUBTOTAL (A) (2)

lotai Sharenoiaing of
Promoter
{A)= (A)(1}HA)2)

49.59.000

49,592,000

100.00

4%.52.000

49.59.000

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

{1} Institutions

a) mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

c] Central Govt

d) Siale Govlis]

e| Venture Capital
Funds

f] Insurance Companies

g Fils

h} Foreign Venture
Copital Funds

i) Others [specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

[2) Non Instituiions

q) Bodies comporates

i} Inclian

i} Overseas

bl Individuals

il Inclividual
shareholders halding
nominal share capital
upto Rs.) takh

i} Individuals
shareholders holding
nominal share capital in
excess of Rs, 1 lakh

c) Others [specify]

SUB TOTAL (8)(2):

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)= (8)(1)+(B)(2)

€. Shares held by
Custodiap for GDRs &
ADRs

0

4]

4]

Grand Total (A+B+C)

49,59.000

49,59.000

100

49,59.000

49.,59.000




(M SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

5INo.| Sharehcldern Hame Shorsholding ot the Shareholding of the
baginning of the yeor ond of the year
No of shores % of tatal % of shares No of shares Roftolal | % of shaves b
sharey pledged/ shares pledged/ ehange
of the encumbared of the sncuvmbared | In shave
company | tefatol shates company | totolal thares | holding
during
the veos |
Richmond Park Property
I [Manogement Services 27.25.750 5494 5495 27,25,750 5494 5496 0
Umitad
DLF Cybear City
2 |Developers Limited 22,33,250 4504 4504 22,233,250 4504 45.04 0
alongwilh s nominees
Total A7.57.000 100.00 100.00 49,519,000 100.00 100.00 0
(M) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS SHAREHOLDING [ SPECIFY IF THERE 15 NO CHANGE)
sl $hare holding of the Cumulative Share holding during the year
Ho. beginning of the Year
Ne. of Shares % of tetal No of shares | % ol lolal shares of the
shares of the company
Sompony
1 |Ad the begirning of the
year 49.59.000 100.00 49.5%.000 100.00
Dale wige
increasefdecrease in
Promaoiers Share holding
during 1he year -
spacifying Iha reasons for
increasefdecreuse [e.g.
allolment/
fransferfbonusfsweat
equily ets)
2 |AtIhe end of the yeor 49,59,000 | 100.00
{¥) Showeholding Pattern of fop ten Shareholdess (other than Directors, Framatens & Holdars of GDRs & ADRz)
5. No Shoreholtding of the Cunwiglive Shareholding during the yeor
For Each of the Tep 10 Mo of shares % of total shares of the
Shareholcers company
1| At Ihe beginning of the year
1 il Nl | Ml | Nil | il
i NIl | Hil | Il | il Wil
Diale wise Incremse/decraase in Shars hotding durng The year speclfying the reasons for
increase/decreate (2.9, allotmenlfIransfar/Donusfsweat aguily ele. :
|
it Nl Nil Ml i
e ] Hil Mil Nil Hil
i
Al the end of Ihe yaarjor on the date of separation, if separated durlng Ihe year)
2
I bl | Hil | [ | Hil | il
Ii Mil | Hil | wil | Hil | Wil
(¥) Shareholding of Directors and Key Manageral | "
51 Mo Shaorehaolding at the Cumulalive Shareholding durdng the year
beginning of the year
For Each ol the Diraclors | Mo.of shares | % of fotal Mo of shares | % of lotal shores of the
& KMP shores of the company
&5 an
| | At Ihe beginning of the il il il Nl
year
Dale  wise  incraase
fdecreqse  in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons fof Ml Ml il il
increasefdecrease  [eg
allolment flransled
JEonysfsweaal aquily
lz,)
2 |Atlhe end of the year
pil Hil Hit Hil




¥ INDEBTEDNESS

(Amount In T Lakhs}

Indebledness of the Company Including Mauhlundiny_qccwad bt not due lor payment

Secured Louns Unsecured Deposlts Tolad
excluding deposits Loans Indebledness
Indebiness at the beginning of the
Nnanchal year
il Pincipal Amount 52,500.00 52,500.00
i) Inlerest due but nol paid - -
fii) Interest accued byl nol due 188.14 188.14
| |

Todal (H+1N) 52,688.14 - 52,488.14
Change In Indebledness during the
Additions 52,648.41 52.648.41
Reduction 154,412.54) [54.612.54)
Net Change {1.944.13) {1.964.13)
indebtedness at the end of the .
il PAncipal Amount 50,575.60 50.575.40
il) Interest due but nol pald - .
fii} Interest accnoed bt not due 148.41 148.41

Tatal (I+11+11) 50,724.01 - 50,724.01
Total (KT} B

vl REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

%

Al Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Managen NN
§l.No Partlcions of R atton Hame of the MD/WID/Manager Tolal Amount
1 Gross salary

section 17{1] of the Income

(@) Salary as per provisions conigined in

Tax. 1961,

(b} Value of perguisites u/fs
Income tox Ach, 1941

17(2) of the

of the Income Tax Ack, 1961

{c | Profits In lieu of salary under seciion 17(3)

2 Stock oplion

3 Sweat Equity -
4 Commission

as% of proft

oihers, specify

5 Others, please specify

Total (A)

Celling as par the Act




Remunerafion te other directors:

SLNo

Parficulars of Remuneration

Name of the Direch

Amount In T

Independent Directors

Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg

Mr. Surinder Singh
Chawla

{a} Fee for attending boord/ committee
meetings

60,000

80,000

|b) Commission

(¢ ) Others, please speacily

Tolal (1}

60,000

1.40.000

Olher Non Executive Directors

Mr, Raj Kumar Jain
[Homings Director}

{a} Fee for attending
boord{ commiitee meetings

40,000

40,000

b} Commission

|e ) Oihers, please specily.

Total (2)

40.000

40,000

Total (B)={1+2)

1.80.000

Total Managaerial R ation

Ovarall Celling oy per the Acth.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PER&(_)NNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD:

5l. Ne.

Particulars of R atlon

Key Managerlal Personnel

Gross Salary

CEO

Company
Secratary

CFO

Total

{al Salary as per provisions conlained in
seclion 17(1] of the income Tox Act, 1941,

[b) Value of perquisites ufs 17|2) of the
Income Tax Act, 1951

[ } Profits in liew of salary under section 17(3)
of the Incorne Tax Act, 1941

Stack Option

¥

Sweal Equity

Commiszion ¥
as% of profit
others, specify

Orthers, please spacify

Total




Vil PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Secfion of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made If any
Companies | Description Penalty/ (RD/NCLT/Court) (give details)
Act Punishment/

Compounding

fees imposed
A, COMPANY
Penalty Nil Nil il Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil N Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Wil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit
Punishrment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil

Date; 01.06.2020
Place; Gurugram

'For and on the behalf ot Board of Directors

Prashant Gaurav Gupta
Director & Manager
DIN-07951272

DLF Emporio Limited

Manoj Kumar Dua
Director
DIN: 02794998
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DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122002.
(CIN - U74920HR1999PLC034168) Website: www.dlifemporio.com
Tel No: 0124-4778121, E-mail: difemporio@dif.in

AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and

Annexure-E

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transaction under third
proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or fransactions not at Arms’ length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the
year ended 315t March 2020, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arms’ length

basis:
Name(s} of | Nature of |Duration Salient | Dates of | Consideration* | Amount
the related | fransaction of terms | Approval | (¥ in Lakh) paid as
party and Transaction by the advances,
nature of Board if any
Relationship
DLF Cyber | Purchase of | One-time Refer 24th 8,991.28 NA
‘ty Investment Note - September
Developers |i.e. 67.30.000 2 2019
Limited, 0.01%
Holding Compulsorily
Company Convertible
Preference
Shares
(CCPS-
Series-ll) of
T 100/- each
of DLF Assefs
Limited,
Fellow
Subsidiary

Company




DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122002.
(CIN - U74920HR19899PLC0341 63) Website: www.difemporio.com
Tel No: 0124-4778121, E-mail: difemporio@dif.in

Name(s) of | Nature of [Duration Salient | Dates of | Consideration* | Amount
the related | transaction of terms | Approval | (¥ in Lakh) paid as
pardy and Transaction by the advances,
nature of Board if any
Relationship
DLF  Cyber | Purchase of | One-fime Refer 24th 65,000.00 NA
City Investment Note - September
Developers | i.e. 2 2019
Limited, 650,00,000
Holding 5% Non-
Company Cumulative

QOptionally

Convertible

Redeemable

Preference

Shares of

T 100/- each

(*OCRPS'} of

Paliwal Real

Estate

Limited, a
Fellow
Subsidiary
Company

* The consideration given is subject to certain adjustments as per the terms of the

respective agreements.

Note-1: The aforesaid transactions are disclosed in terms of the materiality as
defined in Sectfion 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of The
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (‘the Act’).




DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122002.
(CIN - U74920HR1999PLC034168) Website: www.difemporio.com
Tel No: 0124-4778121, E-mail: difemporio@dlf.in

Note-2: The related party transactions (RPTs} executed during the FY 2019-20 were
based on the Valuation Reports received from the Independent Registered
valuers and all the RPTs were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length
basis.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DLF Emporio Limited

Ch e

Prashant Gaurav Gupta Manoj Kumar Dua
Date : 01.06.2020 (Director & Manager) (Director)
Place: Gurugram DIN: 07951272 DIN: 02794998
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1 £ ( ' 11 D 2nd & 3rd Floor
| O UA LT Golf View Corporedte Tower - B
Sector - 42, Sector Road
BGurugram --122 002, Haryana, India

Tel © +91 124 681 6000

Chartered Acir

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of DLF Emporio Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company™), which comprise
the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Ind AS financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 46 to the Ind AS financial statements, which describes the uncertainties and management’s
assessment of the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the Company's operations, carrying amounts of investments, investment
properties, recoverability of receivables and other assets and management’s evaluation of the future performance of the
Company, which is highly dependent on future developments and circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors Report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5.R.Batlibol & Co- LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Igentity No, AAB-42%94
Regd. Otfice - 22;.Camae Street, Block 'B', 3rd Floer, Ketkata*700 016



SR BAtLiBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendment) Rules, 2017. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“‘the Order™), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books:

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2017;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Accordingly, provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial
statements — Refer Note 35 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

_pe upta =
Partner
Membership Number: 501396

UDIN: 20501396 AAAAAMG6317

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 1, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’ section of our
report of even date

Re:

)

i1)

iii)

iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company”)

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets comprising of property plant and equipment, investment property and investment property under development.

b) Fixed assets comprising of property plant and equipment, investment property and investment property under
development have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
identified on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable properties
included in investment property are held in the name of the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not advanced loans to
directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013
apply and hence not commented upon. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of investments made have been complied with by the
Company while those in respect of loans, advances and securities given and security provided are not applicable and hence,
not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company,

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including income-tax,
goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees” state insurance,
provident fund, duty of custom and duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax,
goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to employees” state insurance, provident fund, duty of excise
and duty of custom are not applicable to the Company.
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¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, and service tax on account of any
dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute | Nature of the Amount Period to which the | Forum where the dispute is

dues (Rs. in lacs) amount relates pending
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 1.046.70 AY 2009-10 Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax (Appeals)

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank or dues to debenture holders. The Company
did not have any loans or borrowing in respect of a dues to government during the year.

(ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has utilized
the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements
and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company
or no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Accordingly, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(xi1) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiil) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act
is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company
and, not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 501396
UDIN: 20501396AAAAAMG6317

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 1, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

er Amit (Gupta -~
Partner
Membership Number: 501396
UDIN: 20501396 AAAAAM6317

Place: Gurugram
Date: June |, 2020



DLF Empons Limited
Balanece Sheet as at March 31, 2020
(Ail amonnts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise seated)

MNotes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Prapetty, plant and equipmgnt 3 G.14 3
Investment property 4 36,255.00 F7.001.58
Investment propecty under development 4 2234 -
Finanemnl asscrs
Investments 5 T4.374.00 -
Loang f G615 6l.15
Orher Dnancial asses 7 1,.267.05 -
Non-current tax assets (net) B 1473.07 1,347.89
{Ither non-current assers b 2259 -
1,13,458.44 38,409.62
Current asscts
Iinancial agsers
Trade recervables it 67551 TH6.42
Cash and eash equvalents 1 T14.21) $05.21
{3ther bank balances 12 22.931.75 738343
Laaans 6 - B1,080.24
Oxther financial assets 7 4.63 1,969.62
Cther eurrent asscis Y 382.22 26404
24,708.31 92,289.46
TOTAL ASSETS 1,38,166.75 1,30,699.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capatal 13 495.90 495.90
Other equity 14 T7.924.21 67,637.30
Total equity 78,420.11 68,133.20
MNon-current liabilities
Finanesal liabilines
Borrawings 15 47.567.57 "
Onther Ainancial liabilitics 16 2,234.96 4,366.601
Deferred tax labilites (ner) 17 1,851.32 212016
Otther non-current liabilitics 18 24653 1,459.61
51,900.38 7,946.37
Cutrent liabilities
Ifinancial liabihties
Trade:payables 14
Towl outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.30 17.41
“Total vatstanding dues of ereditors other than miero enterprises and small enerprises 192,40 T01.57
Other financial habihincs 20 7,169,98 53,1482.43
Orther current liabilites 21 483,58 717.90
7,846.26 54,619,51
Total liabilities 59,746.64 62,565.88
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,38,166.75 1,30,699.08
2

Summary of significant accounting policics

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CA] Fim Registeation No.: 301003E/ E3001K05

Partner
Memberslup Number: 501396

Place : Gurugram
Date : June 1, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DLF Emporio Limited

Manoj Kumar Dua rashant Gaurav Gupta
Direetor Director & Manager
DN - (12794998 DIN: 07951272

S

Hari Krishan Bansal
Chicf Iinaneial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date : June 1, 2020




DLF Emporio Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts in € lcs, unless othervise stated)

MNotes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue
Revenue from operations 22 16,218.41 16,234.91
Other meome 23 6,853.05 BU91.71
Total income 23,071.46 25,226.62
Expenses
FFinance costs 24 5,509.29 6,937.96
Deprecton expense 25 BI85 793.97
Ochier expenses 26 4440096 4.274.24
Total cxpenses 10,768.30 12,006.17
Profit before tax 12,303.16 13,220.45
Tax expense 27
{urrent tax 2,853.33 3,553.04
Deferved tax (389.10) (105.50)
Profit after tax 9,838.93 9,772.91
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will nor be reclassified to profic or loss 28
Gain on far valuaton of equity instruments through other comprehensive mcome 382.81
Ingome Tax efféct (87.58) -
295.25 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,134.16 9,772.91
Eamings per equity share (%) (Face value of ¥ 10 per share[March 31, 2019: ¥10]) 29
Basic 198,41 197.07
Dilated 19841 197.07
2

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For 8.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
TCAL Firm Registeation Noa 3010031/ 300005

per Amit Gl#'lta i
Partner
Membership Number: 501396

Place ; (Gurugram
Date : June 1, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DLF Emporio Limited

Manoj Kumar Dua
Director
DIN - 02794998

A=F

Hari Krishan Bansal

Chicf Financial Officer

Prashant Gaurav Gupta
Director & Manager
IDIN: 07951272

Place ; Gurugram
Date : June 1, 2020




DLF Emporio Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in ¥ Lics, unless otherwvise stated)

Equity share capital

Particulars Balance as at Changes during the year Balance as at Changes during the year Balance as at
April 1, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020

Lquity share capital 495.90 - 495.90 - 495.90
Other equity
Particnlars Reserves and surplus

Sccurities premium | Capital redemption Debenture General reserve Retained earnings | Equity instruments through| Total other equity

reserve redemption reserve other comprehensive
income

Balance as at April 1, 2018 4,455.00 4.10 8,079.92 - 45,325.37 - 57,864.39
Profit for the year = S - = 977291 F 9.772.91
Creation of debenture redemption reserve” - 4.678.50 = (4,678.50) E -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 4,455.00 4.10 12,758.42 - 50,419.78 - 67,637.30
Adjustment on account of Ind AS 116 (et of taxes) - = - E 152.75 E TBETS
Revised opening halance as at April 1, 2019 4,455.00 4.10 12,758.42 - 50,572.53 - 67,790.05
Profit for the year = = = = 9 83893 E 0.438.93
Orther comprehensive income (refor note 45) - - - - - 295.25 295.23
Creatieon of debenture redemption reserve® 366.58 [AGA5RY -
‘I'ransfer from debenture redemption reseeve on - - (13,1254 13,125.40 - & -
redemption of 10.9% o Non convertible debentures ©
As at March 31, 2020 4,455.00 4.10 - 13,125.00 60,044.88 295.23 77.924.21

* refer note 14

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
TOAT flirm Regstration Now: 3010035/ F300005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DLF Emporio Limited

el © kT

Manoj Kumar Dua
Director
DIN - 02794998

rashan!

auray Gupta
Dircetor & Manager
DIN: 07951272

Parmnere
Membership Number: 501396

-

q
Hari Krishan Bansal
(hief Financial (fficer

Place : GGurugram
Date : June 1, 2020

Place : Gurugram
Date : June 1, 2020




DLF Emportio Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless othenvise stated)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A.  Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1230316 13,220.45
Adjusunent for :
Interest expense 5,135.42 6,403.25
Prowison for deubiful debis 135.69 -
Amaount forfeited on properties (61.52) -
Depreciation expense 1805 T93.97
Rent steaghthomg (50.02)
Loss on sale of Tnvestment property 495 0.46
Finanicial hability measured at amortised cust (net) {21.51) 14.13
Loss on pre settlement/ modificaton of financial halality (net) 128.67 6.75
Interest inenme (6,834.15) (8,054.79)
Operating profit before working capital changes 11,579.14 11,493.22
Adjustment for change in working capital :
Inerease m teade recevables (44.285 (184.84)
Dieerease in loans, financial and other current assers 94.67 105.48
Decrense i trade payables (526.08) (342.69)
Inerease/ (decrease) in financial and other habilites {125.62) 359.86
Cash flow from operations 10,977.83 11,424,03
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (2.978.51) (3,587.73)
Net cash flow from operating activities 7,999.32 7,836.30
B. Cash flow from investing activitics
Purchase of Property, plant and equipmient and Investment property (including Tnvestment Cizn) B304
properry under development)
Proceeds from sale of Tnvestment property 1.02 .53
Loans recerved back from related parties 68.817.75 -
Investment in/ (proceeds from) fixed deposits {net) 697.94 (118.55)
Investment in pther bank balances (15,548.32) {5,128.22)
Purchase of compulsory eonvertible preference shares (73,991.28) -
Tnrerest receved 19.096.64 3,244.11
Net cash used in investing activities (1,030.53) (2,057.76)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of 1090 Won convernble debeneres (52,500.00) =
Proceeds from long term borrowings 52,500,000 .
Repayment of long term borcowings {1.924.40) -
Interest and processing fees pad on long term borrowings {5,135.40) (5.722.50)
Net eash used in financing activities (7,059.80) (5,722.50)
Net (deerease)/inerease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {91.01) 56.04
Casl and cash equivalents ar the beginning of the year f15.21 74997
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) 714.20 805.21

Summary of significant accounting policies s
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For 8.R. Badlibei & Co. LLP Forand on behalf of the Board of Di
Chartered Aeeountants DLF Emporio Limited
TCNT W Regsteation Nog 3010035/ 300005
Manoj Kumar Dua urav Gupta
Al r . i
Partner Dircctor Direetor & Manager
Membership Number: 501396 DIN - 02794995 DIN: 07951272
&
L
Hari Krishan Bansal
Chief Finaneial Officer
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Date : June 1, 2020 Date : June 1, 2020




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amount in € lacs, unless otherwise stated)

21

2.2

b)

Corporate information
Nature of principal activities

DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and has its registered office in Gurugram,
Haryana. The Company was incorporated on March 17, 1999 under the provisions of Indian Companies Act. The registered
office of the Company is located at Shopping Mall, Phase-I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana.

The Company has constructed a Shopping mall-cum-entertainment complex named as DLF Emporio, at Vasant Kunj,
consisting of shops, commercial spaces, entertainment centre including but not limited to eateries, convention hall, indoor games
court, food court, restaurants etc. and basement for parking and other spaces etc. The Company is engaged in the business of
leasing and maintenance of shopping mall.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were authotized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on June 01, 2020.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from
time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (%) and all values have been rounded to the nearest lacs, except

when otherwise indicated.

Summaty of significant accounting policies
Cutrent and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Companies Act 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current
liabilities, as the case may be.

Revenue from contracts with customers and other streams of revenue

Revenue comprises the consideration received or receivable for providing retail spaces on operating lease, rendering of
maintenance service and other income in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is presented, net of taxes,
rebates and discounts (if any).

Revenne is recognized as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for contingent rental income which is
recognised when it arises. Refer note 2(g) for policy relating to recognition of rental income.

Revenue in respect of maintenance services is recognised over time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract.
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Advertisement/ promotional income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

Parking income includes revenue earned from the operations of the parking facilities, which is recognised when the services
are rendered.
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DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amount in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset1s recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. The same has been included under the head “unbilled
receivables” in the financial statements.

Trade receivables
- receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (ie., only the passage of time
1s required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

-\ contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Companv transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
eatlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. The same has been
included under the head “advance from customers” in the financial statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during
the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Capitalisation of botrowing costs is suspended in
the period during which the active development is delayed due to, other than temporaty, interruption. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Properties plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and usefirl lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set out below) prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)

Office equipments 5

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of property, plant and equipment.
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Investment property

Recagnition and initial measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are measured
initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate; only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and are carted at
cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

Subsequent measnrement (depreciation and nyefirl lives)
Depreciation on inyestment properties is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out
below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)
Buildings 60
Plant and equipments 15

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

De-rocognition

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Investment property recognised
as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
investment property.

Foreign currencies

FEunctional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functonal currency using the closing
rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on such conversion and setflement at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.
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Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an 1dentified asset for a period of time 1n exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right of use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

Right to use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease labilitles recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease rerm or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to
impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (n) Impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid undet
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exetcise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising
the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities 1s increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is 2 modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or
a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The Company’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing loans and borrowings.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease tecognition exemption to its shott-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. Rental income is recognized
on straight line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item
are classified and accounted for as finance lease. Lease rental receipts are appottioned between the finance income and capital
tepayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrving amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment
losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

Inetial recogneition and measurenent

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value
through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities is described below.

Non-derivative financial assets

Suthsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost — the financial assets is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
mert:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the prncipal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mnterest rate
(EIR) method.

Equity investments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FV'TPL). For all other equity instruments, the
Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) ot fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such ¢lection on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asser.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities 1s also adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Compound financial instrument

Compound financial instrument are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On
issuance of the said instrument, the liability component is arrived by discounting the gross sum at a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial lability measured at amortised cost until it is extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is recognised as equity component of compound financial
instrument. This is recognised and included in sharcholders” equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights, When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —
o All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses,

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the
balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Income Taxes
Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with
relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax

Deferred rax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income, This is
assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses
and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Unused tax credit (Minimum alternate tax (MAT’) credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there
is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the vear in which such
credir becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying
amount of unused tax credit to the extent it is not reasonably certain that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

Goods & Services Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the balance sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short-term highly liquid
investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.
Contingent liability is disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of tesources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is disclosed.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the petiod attributable to equity shareholders

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.

Significant management judgements

Property lease classification — Company as lessor
The Company has entered into retail property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based

on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options— Company as lessor
As a lessor, the Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered

by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not the lessee
shall exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for the lessee to exercise either the renewal or termination.

The Company has not included the renewal period as part of the lease term for buildings given to leases to tenants consideting
the following:

Option of renewal of lease term is solely at the option of lessee and the Company is not reasonably certain that the lessee may
exercise the option of renewal, as this is outside the control of the Company.

Considering the current market dynamics of rental market, where more and more players have entered the commercial office space
market as well as looking at the data of current churn of leases and rental growth in last 10 years, there is no reasonable certainty of
renewal of leases over total lease period.

Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably
cettain not to be exercised.

Refer to note 4 (v) for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of
extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term,

Estimates

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of
the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the
assets.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the
management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company
assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However, the actual future outcome
may be different from this judgement.
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Valuation of investment property — Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 Investment property
there is a requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Company engaged independent valuation specialists
to determine the fair value of its investment property as at reporting date.

The determination of the fair value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from the
assets (such as lettings, future revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental matters and the overall
repair and condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition, development risks (such as
construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when determining the fair value of the properties under
construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar secunity, the funds necessary to obrain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain Company specific
estimates.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utlity of certain software, customer relationships, IT
equipment and other plant and equipment.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards
The Company applied Ind AS 116 for the first ime, The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these new
accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first ime during the current yeat, but do not have an impact on the
financial statements of the Company. The Company has not eatly adopted any standatds or amendments that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17, , including Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives, Appendix B of Ind AS 17
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Léase and Appendix C of Ind AS 17, Determining whether an
Avrrangement contains a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance
sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17 However, under Ind AS 17, the exemption available to lessor
in respect of straight lining of rental income if the increase in rental income was in line with general inflation has been withdrawn
in Ind AS 116. Accordingly, lessors are now required to account for impact of escalations in rental income over the lease term
either on a straight-line basis ot any othet systematic basis.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of
April 1, 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to not
reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease at April 1, 2019. Instead, the Company applied the standard only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17.
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The effect of adoption Ind AS 116 as at April 1, 2019 (increase/ (decrease) is, as follows:

Particulars Amount
Assets

Unbilled receivables 185.42
Total assets 185.42
Total adjustment on equity

Retained earnings 18542
Deferred tax impact on above (32.67)

b) Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

Appendix: C Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments addresses the accounting for income taxes when fax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 Inwme Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind
AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The Appendix specifically addresses the following:

Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates

How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other
uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The Company applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments. Since the Company
operates in a complex environment, it assessed whether the Appendix had an impact on its financial statements.

Further, another amendment has been made to Ind AS 12 that clarifies that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked
more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an
entity recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according
to where it originally recognised those past transactions or events.

The amendment is applicable for the reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. When the entity first applies this

amendment, it applies them to the income tax consequences of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest

comparative period. Since the Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no impact on the financial

statements of the Company.

c¢) Amendments to Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs
The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifying
asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete. The entity
applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting petiod in which the entity
first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1,
2019. Since the Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no impact on the financial statements of
the Company.

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective
There is no standard tssued but not yet effective as on date which is effective from next year.




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless othernise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment
The changes w the eareying value of property, plant and equipment for the vear ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Office equipment Total
Gruss block
As at April 1, 2018 T84 754
Additions - -
Disposals/adjustment - -
As at March 31, 2019 7.84 7.84
As at April 1, 2019 744 T.84
Additions T.64 7.64
Disposals/adjustment -
As at March 31, 2020 15.48 15.48

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1, 2018 7.84 T84
Charge for the year 4 =
Disposals /[ adjustments -

As at March 31, 2019 7.84 7.84
As at April 1, 2019 T.84 T.84
Charge for the year 1.50 1.50
Disposals/adjustment -
As at March 31, 2020 9.34 9.34
Net block

As at March 31, 2019 - -
As at March 31, 2020 6.14 6.14

(i) Contractual obligations
The Company docs not have any contractual commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at March 31, 2020 and March
31, 2014,

(i) Capitaliscd borrowing cost
The Company has not capitalised any borrowing eost during the year ended March 31, 2020 and the year ended March 31, 2019.

(iii) Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment (represents deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.¢. on April 1, 2015)

Description Gross block ACClImI'.l]a‘u“.‘d MNet block
depreciation

Office equipments 32.38 2228 10.10

Total 32.38 22.28 10.10

(This space bas been intentionally loft blnk)
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DLF Emporio Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

5 Investments - non current
In compulsorily convertible preference shares®
Paliwal Real Fsraie Limited 65,065.00) -
= 6,530,000 59w Compulsorily convertible preference shares of 3 100 cach
DILE Assers Limited (foemerdy TILI Assets Povate Limited ) 9,309.09 -
= 673,000 .01 Compulsonly convernble prefercnce shares of T 100 cach
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 74,374.09 -
= refer .r;ult' 43,
Non-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
6 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Due from related partes® (refer note 34)
DLE Emporo Restaurants Tamited - - - 3,106,435
DL Theme Dievelopers Limited - 2 - TTO73.79
Seeurity deposits o115 615 E -
60.15 60.15 - 81,080.24
* Includes interest acerued and due T Nil (March 31, 2019 T 12,262.49 lics)
MNon-current Current
Maurch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 Muarch 31, 2019
7 Other financial asscts
Other Bank balance * 1,267.05 - - 1.965.22
Interest accred
+ Secwrity deposit = = 4.63 440
1,267.05 5 163 1,969.62

* Nun current portion of other bank balance sepresents deposits (mncluding interest accrued) with original maturity of 12 months held by the eatity that ace not available for use
by the Company, as these deposits are pledged with the bank to fulfil the collateral requirements of loan from bank.

Non-current

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

8 MNon current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net of provisions for tas) 1.473.07 1.347.49
1,473.07 1,347.89

MNon-current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

9  Other assets

Advance to supplicrs 4587 65.97
Unbilled recervables 22,59 2¥7.82 65.45
Balanee with stamtory authoritics - 20.05 44.23
Prepad expenses - T9.08 58,39
22,59 - 382.22 264.04

(i spaace s been intentionatly &ft bilkanik)




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Al amounts in T lacs, unless othenvise stated)

Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
10 Trade receivables
Related parties (refer note 39}
Secured, donsidered good 56.59 69.54
Unsecured, considered good 59,07 38,44
Others
Secured, considered good 528,684 G45.75
Unseeurcd
- Congidered good 3117 3314
- Considered doubtful 155.69 -
831.20 786.92
Less  Alowance foreXpected credit loss [155.69) =
675.51 786.92
11 Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balances with banks
In ewrrent gecount - 15.93
In-eserow aceount (held as margin money as sceurity against borrowings) T14.20 T89.28
714.20 805.21
11.1  Changes in liahilitics arising from financing activitics
April 1, 2019 Cash flows Charged to March 31, 2020
Statcment of Profit
& Loss
Long term borrowings (including interest) 52,509.65 7,059.80) 5,135.83 5(),585.68
Toral habilities from finaneing activities 52,509.65 7,059.80 5,135.83 50,585.68
April 1, 2018 Cash flows Charged to March 31, 2019
Statement of Profit
& Loss
Lang term borrowings (including incerest) 51,828.90 5,722.50 6,403.25 52,509.65
Toral liahilites from financing activities 51,828.90 5,722.50 6,403.25 52,509.65
12 Other bank balances March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Bank deposics with marurity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 22,931.75 7,383.43
22,931.75 7,383.43

{Thas space har been fnfentionally feft blank)




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(AN amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13
13.1

(@)

(b)

(i)

(i)

i)

(i)

13.2

14

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Share capital
Equity share capital
Authorised equity share capital
FEquity shares of T 10 éach 49,592,000 405.50 49,59,000 495.90

49,59,000 495.90 49,59,000 495.90
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Fquity shares of T 10 cach 49,59 4100 495.90 49,50 000 495.90

49,59,000 495.90 49,59,000 495.90
Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
At the beginning of the vear 49,509,000 495.90) 49,59,0010 495,90
Tssued durning the vear - - - 2
Qutstanding at the end of the year 49,59,000 495,90 49,59,000 495.90

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

T'he Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shage ts entitded to one vote pee shave: Tn the event of
liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shaves will be entitled 1o receve remaining assers of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion ta the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.,

Details of shares held by holding company and sharcholders holding more than 5% shareholding in the Company

MName of the sharehold March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Equity Shares Mo of shares % holding No of shares % holding
Richmand Park Property Management Services Limited, holding company 27,25,750 54.96" 2725750 54.96%
DLI Cyber City Developer Limited and its nominees 22,33.250 45.04% 22,33,250) 45041

The Company has not issued any equity shares issued pursuant to comtract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus issucs
and brought back duning the last five years.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Preference share capital No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Authorised preference share capital
12% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of % 100 cach 100 0.10 100 0.10
94 non cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 100 each 00 .00 4,000 4.00
4,100 4.10 4,100 4.10
Other equity March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Reserves and surplus
Securitics Premium 4,455.00 4,455.00
Capital redemption reserve 410 410
Debenture redemption reserve & 1275842
General réserve 13,125.00 -
Retained earnings 60,044.88 50,419.78
liquity instruments through other comprehensive income 295.23 =
77,924.21 67,637.30

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premium
Secuntics premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordanice with the provisions of the Companics Act,

Capital redemption reserve
The amount of money that the Company must keep when it buys back shares and which it eannot pay to sharcholders as dividends: The capital redemprion reserve is
a non-distributable reserve.

Debenture redemption reserve
The Company is required o create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of
debentures,

General reserve
The Company has transferred the balanee lving in debenture redemption reserve o general reserve at the ime of redemption of 10.900% Non-convertble debentuees
in June 2019 (refer note 42),

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

The Company has ¢lected to recognize changes in the fair value of investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These chanpes are accumulated
within the Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the
relevant equity securitics are derecognized.




DLF Emporio Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

15

152

(0]
)
(i)

(iv)

16

17

Borrowings

Secured

Loan from bank (refer 15.1)

1029 0 Nem convierible debentures * frefer 15.2)

Less : Diselused under ther fnancial habilites (refer
nite 200)

¢ based vm ey redempoen dare

Rupee loan from bank :

Non - Current Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
51) 437,27 - -
£ £ = 52,321.51
50,437.27 - - 52,321.51
2.869.70) ; . (52321.51)
47,567.57 - - -

Facility of 47,567.58 lacs ( March 31, 2019 : Nil ), balance amount is repayable in 86 monthly installments starting from April 2021
e term foan of ¥ 3043727 lacs (non-current: T 47,567.58 lacs and cureent T 2,869.70 lacs) (March 31, 2019; % Nil) is secured by way o

Ligquitable mortgage of immovable propeety sicuated at New Delhi owned by the Company.

Chargeon recervables pertaining o the aforesaid immovable property dwnicd by the Compani:

The Company's total borrowing from bank carey effecuve wetghted contractual average rateof 895" ( Macch 31,2009 ¢ Nily per annum calculated usmg the mierest

rate etfeenve ason March 31, 2020 for the satd boerowing,

Repayment terms and security disclosure for the outstanding’ long term borrowings ( excluding current maturities ) as on March 31, 2020 :
5250 listed, secured, redeemable, non convertible debentures of ¥ 1,000,000 each referred above to the extent of:
TNl ( March 31, 2019 - ¥ 5232151) having coupon rate of 10.90" and the final cedempron date is November 21, 2021 and date of redemption (hased on early
cedemption date) is latest by November 21, 2019 The Company has exercised its aght to redeem all the debeatures on May 22, 2010,

These debentures of NA (March 31, 2019: T52,321.51 lacs {non-current: ¥ Nil and current 352,321,351 lacs)) is secured by way of :
liiest part passu charge on the immuovable property situated at New Delhi, owned by the Company.
Charge on recervables pertaining to - the aforesatd immovable propeety vwned by the Company,

Pledge over the sharcholding of Company.

Fixed deposits pledped with debenture rustees, (refer note 7)

MNon - Current

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Other financial liahilities
Seeurity deposit received from enants 223496 4,366,600
2,234.96 4,366.60
MNon - Current
Deferred tax liabilities (net) March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of ;
Deducton claimed under section 24(b} of the Ineome tax Ace, 1961, 171805 2RI
Tmpact on fnancial labilioe at amorosed eost 13314 3802
Impact on financial assets at amortised cost INE] .13
1,851.32 2,120.16
Movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars April 1, 2019 Recognised in profit and | Recogniscd in other March 31, 2020
loss and retained earnings (comprehengive income
(refer note 43)
Non-current assets
Iovestment property 2082 (363.96) - L1805
Finaneial assers measured at amorosed cist 0.13 - - 013
Non current liabilities
Financial lability measured at amorased cost 3802 7.54 8758 13514
Total 2,120.16 (356.42) 87.58 1,851,32
Movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars April 1, 2018 Recognised in statement of| Recognised in other March 31, 2019
profit and loss comprehensive income
MNon-current assets
Investment property 2,175,95 (93.99) - 20821
Financial assets measured ar amortsed cost 013 . - 013
Non current liabilities
Financial liability measured at amortised cost 49.58 {11.56) - 3802
Total 2,225.66 (105.50) = 2,120.16




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

18

19

20

21

Other non-current Habilities

Deferred ineome

Trade payables

Toral vutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 33)

Taral outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Related Parties (refer note 39)
Others

Other financial liabilities

Current maturirics of long rerm debt (Non convertible debentures)(refer note 15)
Current maturitics of long term debr (Bank loan) (refer note 15)

Interest acorued on borrowings
Security deposits received from renants
Capital creditors

Other payable

Other current liabilities

Deferred income
Advance from customers

Statutory ducs payable

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
246.53 1,459.61
246.53 1,459.61
Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
0.30 17.41
13.36 298.00
179.04 403.37
192.70 718.78
Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- 52,321.51
2.869.70 2
148.41 188.14
411971 633.95
18.89 39.23
13.27 =
7,169.98 53,182.83
Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
32446 521.12
1917 21.71
139.95 175.07
483.58 717.90




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts in T lacs, unless othenvise stated)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

22 Revenue from operations
Operating revenue
Rental imcome* 12.902.67 12953161
Revenue from contract with customers
Disaggregated revenue information

Service ncome 291125 245472
Markmyg Tneome 173,36 173.91
Income from privmoton and advertsement actvitics 167.61 173.67
Amount torferted on propertes 61.32 -
Tatal revenue from contracts with customers 3,315.74 3,304.30
16,218.41 16,234.91

* 1t includes T 390407 lacs (March 31, 201 T 51930 lacs) income smaccomnt of Gnancial liability measured at amornsed eose and T 50002 (Maech 31,
201%: Naly lags om aceount of steaght limng,

Duning the current year, rental meome of E 527.00 lacs (March 31, 2009 Nil) has not been recognised on account of lack of certamnty of golleetion of leise
pavinents from thie lessees.

Other disclosures required under Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers'

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

&, Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue recognised over period of ne 3,254.22 330430

Revenue recognised at a point of tme .52 -

3,315.73 3,304.30

b. Contract balances

Trade receivable from contracts with cutomers 32204 293.85

Contract assets 24,37 65.45

Contract hiabilitics 19.24 .36

Trade recervables are genceally on terms of 7 o 30 davs. Interest oo delay in payments from customers (iPany) 15 recopnised as pee the weems of conteacts,

Contract asscts are mutally recogmsed [or revenue cared from maintenance services and other operating income as recept of consideranon s conditonal
un successtul provision of services, Upon completion of services, the amounts recognised as eontract assets are reelassified o tade recervables.

Contract liabilines include advances recaved in respect of provision of mamtenance sérvices to the tenants,

Muarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
c. Significant changes in contract assets and contract liabilities during the year
i) Maovement of contract liabilities
Amounts ncluded in contract habilities at the beginning of the year 0.36 -
Amount received / adjusted against contracr liabadities durng the vear 14,88 (L.36
Revenue recognised from pedformance oblganons satsfied in previous vears - -
A included in liabilities at the end of the year 19.24 0.36
ii) Movement of contract assets
Amounts included i contract assets at the begmning of the vear 65.45 150,18
Aot received / adjosted duning the vear (41.08) (B4.73)
Amounts included in contract assets at the end of the year 2457 65.43
d. Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:
Amewmnts wchaded o contract liabilics ar the beginning of the year = -
Pecfurmance obligations satisfied m previous vears = A
€. R ciling the of revenue recognised in of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenuae as per contract price 325422 3MEL30
Adjustment [{if any) - =
3,254.22 3,304.30
£ Perfomance obligation

The perfirmance obligation of the Company in case of muntenance services is sabisfied over-time; using an input method © measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer simultancously réceves-any consumes the benehits provided by the Company. The Company
rasses invonees as per the terms of the contracts, upon which the pavment is due to be made by the tenants,

As per the terms of the service contmets with the customers, the Company has right to consideration from customers in an amount that diseetly
corresponds with the value o the customers of the Company's pecformance obligation completed il date. Necordingly, the Company has used the
pragtical expedient under Tnd A8 115 "Revenue from coneracts with customers’ and has disclosed mformation reladng to performance obligoons to the
extent cequired under Tad A= 115




DLF Emporio Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amaunts in ¥ lacs, unless othenwvise stated)

23 Other income March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trterest income on
Bank deposits 1,300.93 453.2%
Loans o e K,501.50)
Orthers 15.87 209
Unclaimed balances and excess provisions written back 0.2 14.21
Miscellaneous income 3.01 072
6,853.05 8,991.71
24 Finance costs March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest expense on
MNuon eonveroble debentures UTR.07 6,403.25
Bank loan 4,157.76 -
On income tax 4.65 =
Financal kabihiy measured at amornsed cost 368.56 553.43
Guarantee and bank charges .25 1.28
5,509.29 6,937.96
25 Depreciation expensc March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciaton on property, plant and equipment 1.50 =
Depreciation on investment property 816.55 T93.97
818.05 793.97
26 Other expenses March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rates and raxes 44.98 2245
Elecrnaity; fuel and sater 904.39 936.52
Advertisement and publicity 423.53 530.34
Repair and maintenance - building 10407 4712
Repar and muntenance - others 153.00 136.69
Commission & brokerage - 0.10
Pacility mainwnance expenses 1,610.32 1,685.80
Heating, ventilation and arrconditioning 48718 476.91
Bad debts written off - 952
Paymient to auditors (cefer note 26.1) 29.20 2932
Legal and professional fees 47.87 (5.87
Corporate social responsibiliny expense (refer note 38) 253.00 234.25
Director's sitting fecs 1.82 7.08
Dircetor's travelling expense .85 1.15
Business support service charpes 83.57 74,36
Provision for doubrful debts 155.69 -
Loss on pre setdement/ modification of financial lability (net) (refer note 45) 12867 6.75
Loss on sale of investment property 4.95 9.46
Miscellaneous expenses 7.87 .55
4,440.96 4,274,24
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
26,1 Auditor’s remuneration®
Audir fees (inluding hmited roviews) 20.00 20.00
Tax audit fees 3.50 7.00
Orther services .00 =
Reimbursement of expenses 1.70 232
29.20 29.32

Fonlusive of appliable taxes

(This apaace by een tntentionally Jeft blank)




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

27 Tax expense

29

Current tas

Deferred tax credic

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2.853.33 3,553.04
(389.10) (105.50)

2,464.23 3,447.54

The major components of income tax expense and the reconcihation of expense based on the domestic effecnve mx rate of ar 25.17% (March

31, 2019- 29.12%) and the reporred tax expense in profic or loss are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Accounting profit before income tax 12,303.16 13,220.45

At statutory income tax rate of 25.17%0 (March 31, 2019: 2912 4) (A) 3,096.46 3,849.80
Adjustments

Non deductible expense for tax purposes:

ixpenses relating ro income chargeable under "Income under the head Tlouse Properry” 699.61 786.11

and "Profit and Gains from Business and Profession”

Expenses allowable for tax purposes:

sStandard deducnon under seetion 24(a) of Income Tax Aet, 1961 (942.73) {1,082.87)
Others

Difterence due to change in tax rate (282.506)

Deferred rax on unammornsed pre construction interest (81.41) (93.93)
Others (25.14) (11.57)
Total adjustment (B) (632.23) (402.26)
Income tax expenses recognised in the books (A+B) 2,464.23 3,447.54

The Company has clecred to excreise the option permitted under seetion 115BAN of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Aecordingly, the Company has recognised provision for Tncome Tax for the year and re-measured its

deferred rax habilicy basis the rate preseribed in the said section.

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassed to profit or loss
Ifatr valuation gain on investment in equity instrument

[ncome tax effect on above

Earnings per equity share
[iarnings artributable to equity sharcholders
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in numbers)
Nominal value of equity share )
Earnings per equity share (T)
- Basic
- Dilured
(This space bas been intentionally left blank)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
382.81 -
(87.58) -
295.23 -
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
9.838.93 9,772.91
49,59,000 49,59,000
10.00 10.00
198.41 197.07
198.41 197.07
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in T lacs, otherwise stated)

30 Fairvalue disclosures

i) Fair values hierarchy
Tinaneial assets and financial liabilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hicrarchy. The three
levieds are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: yuoted prices (unadjusted) in aceive markets for financial instruments
Level 2: The faievalue of financal instruments that are not traded in an active market is derermined using valuaton wehnigues which maximise the use of observable
marker data rely as lictle 45 possible on entity speeific estimates.

Level 3: 1 one or more of the sigmificant inputs s not based on observabile marker data; the instrument is included 1 level 3.

(i) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Fare value of investment 17 equity shares have been determined based on discounted cash Oose method {income apprisach)

(iii) The symificant unobservable mputs used 10 level 3 fair value measurements are discount rates and long term growth rate: The careying value of investment in DL
Assets Tamited and Paliwal Real Fstate Limited is low and hence, 0590 pereentage change i the unobservable inputs used in the fair valuation of level 3 assets does
nol have a signifieant tmpact on carrying valye.

(iv) Investment in Equity Shares

Particulars Amount|
As at March 31, 2018 -
Disposal of investments -
(]:Lin/['[uss) recngnised in other comprehensive ingome =
As at March 31, 2019 -
Purchase of investments 73.991.24
G recognised in other comprehensive tncome 3H2.81
As at March 31, 2020 74,374.09

(v) Financial instruments by eategory

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Level Carrying value Amortised cost Level Carrving value Amortised cost
Financial assets
Tovestments Tasel 3 T74,374.00 7437400 Lvel 3 o -
Loans Livel 3 60.15 60,15 Level 3 60.15 60.15
Cther financal assets Level 3 1,267.05 1,267.05 Lesel 3 - -
Total financial asscts 75,701.29 75,701.29 60.15 60.15
Financial liabilitics
Buorrowings Level 3 47,567.57 47,567.57 Level 3 52.500.65 52.509.65
Security deposit Level 3 6,354.67 6,354.67 Ligvel 3 5,000.55 5,000.55
‘Total financial liabilitics 53,922.24 53,922.24 57,510.20 57,510.20

The management assessed that cash and cash cquivalents, other bank balance Jtrade receivables, other current financial asscts, trade payables and other current
financial liabilitics approsimate their eaerving amounts fargely due to the shori-term maturitics of these instruments. The Fair value of the financial assets and liabilitics
s included ar the amount ar which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction berween willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

The fairvalues for security deposits received were caleulated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They ave classified as level 3 fair values in the
fair value hicrarchy duc to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

31 Financial risk management
i) Financial instruments by catcgory

Tinancial instruments, carrving value represents the best estimates of fair values

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Amortised cost Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 675.51 T86.92
lovestments T4,374.09 -
Losans - H1,1411.39
Cash and equivalents T14.20 B05.21
Fixed deposit (including mterest acerued) 1,267.05 =
Other bank balances 2293175 T,383.43
Other financial asscts 4.63 1,969.62
Total 99,967.23 92,085.57
Financial liabilitics
Borcowings including interest 4771598 52,509.65
‘Trade pavahle 192,70 T18.78
Seeurity deposit 6,354.67 5,000,55
Oither fnancial liabilitics 2.901.86 39.23
Toral 57,165.21 58,268.21

ii) Risk Management

The Company's activites expose it o marker risk, liquidity risk and eredit risk. The Compan's board of diccctors has overall responsibilicy for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework, This note explains the sources of rsk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and

the related impact in the financial statements:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A)

1)

b)

B)

Credit risk

Credie risk is thie nisk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposurc to credit risk is influcnced mainly by cash and cash
cquivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amorised cost. The Company continuously monitors defilis of customers and other connterparics and
incorporates this information into its eredit risk contreols.Credit risk eelaced 1o cash and eash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly eated
banks and diversifying bank deposits. Other finaneial assers measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances |, security deposits and others, Credit risk eelated
t6 these other financial assers 15 managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, swhile at the same time internal conteol system in place
ensure the amounts are within defined limis.

Credit risk management

Corvded yavk rdeny

The Company assigns the following eredit ratings to cach elass of financial asscts based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific w the class of financial assets.
Az Losw credit visk on financial reporting date

B: Maoderare credit risk

i High credit sk

The Company provides for expeeted eredit loss based on the following:

Asset grou Basis of categorisation Provision for expenses credit loss
group £ (A

Low eredit risk Cash and cash cquivalents, other bank|12 month expected credit loss/life time expected credit loss
balances, loans, trade recevables and
other financial assets

Moderate credit nsk Oiher hoancoal asscis 12 month expeeted credit loss/lite time expected eredit loss

ITigh eredit risk Trade receivables Lific time expected credit loss

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party Fails to makce paymenes within the
agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are hased onactual credit loss experience and considering differences benween current and historical

Assets under credit risk —

Credit rating Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A Low eredit visk Cash and eash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, trade receivables, other assets 99.571.69 92,085.57
B Moderace eredit ask Cthier finaneial assets . -
C: [high credit nisk Trade receivables 155.69 ~

Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for expected eredit loss based on ifetime expeeted eredit loss mechanism for loans and advances, deposits and other investments -

March 31, 2020

Particulars Gross carrying amount Expected credit losses Carrying amount net of provision
Tnvestment at amortised cost T4.374.00 - T4374.09
Trade receivables H31.20 - #3120
Cash and cash equivalents 71420 - F14.20)
Other bank balance 295108 - 22.951.75
Orther financial assets 1,271.68 - 1,271.68
Loans 6().15 - 61).15
March 31, 2019

TParticulars Gross cartying amount Expected credit losses Carrying amount net of provision
Investment at amortised eost = E E
Trade receivables THGY2 - T86.92
Cash and cash equivalents H#05.21 - 805.21
Other bank balance 7,383.43 - 7,383.43
Other financial assets 1,969.62 - 1,969.62
Loans £1,141.39 i §1,140.39

T respect of trade recavables, the Company considers provision for lifeiime expeeted eredit loss, Given the nature of business operations, the Company’s trade
receivables has low credit risk as the Company holds sceurity deposits equivalents ranging from three to six months rentals. Further historical teends indicate any
shortfall between such deposits held by the Company and amounts due from customers have been negligible,

The eredit risk for cash deposits with banks and cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality
external erediv raings. Also, no impairment loss has been recorded in respect of fixed deposits dhat are with recognized commercial banks and are not past due. The
carrying amounts disclosed above are the Company’™s maximum passible credir risk exposure in relation these deposits.

Orther financial assets being security deposits, investment and others are also due from several eounter parties and based on historical information about defaults from
the counter partics, management considers the quality of such assets that are not past due to be good.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity visk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securitics and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit faciliies to meet obligntions when due. Due to the matare of the business, the Company maintans fexibility in funding by maintaining availabilicy
under committed facilitics.

AManagement monitons rolling furecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and eash and eash equivalents on the basis of expected eash flows. The Gompany takes
into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity aperates. Tn addition, the Company’s lquidin: management policy involves projecting cash flows in major




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2020
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Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the company’s Gnancial habilities into relevant maturty based on their éontractual maturdtics for all non-derivative financial labilitics.

The amounts disclosed in the able are the conteacrual undiscounted eash flows, Balances due within 12 monthis equal their carrying balances as the impact of

discountng 18 not significant,

March 31, 2020 Less than 1 vear 1-5 yvear More than 5 vears Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowings including inrerest 7.296.45 34,256.06 3144431 72.996.82
Trade payable 192.40 - - 192.40
Securnity deposits 4,206.57 246443 278.25 6,949,55
Other financial liabilines 13.27 1327
Total 11,708.99 36,720.49 31,722.56 80,152.04
March 31, 2019 Less than 1 year 1-5 vear More than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowings including interest 33,487,792 2 - 5348772
Trade payable TI8TH - - TI8.78
Security deposits (49,38 4,735.82 1,727.07 701227
Other Anancial habilines - 39.25 30,25
Total 54,855.88 4,775.05 1,727.07 61,358.00

C) Market Risk

Market risk is the sisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial insteument will fluctuace because of changes in market prices. Marker risk comprises o
types Of risk: interest rate visk and price risk. Pinancial instruments affecred by market nisk include fixed rate borrowings, fixed deposits and FVTOCT investments.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 15 the risk that the fair value or furure cash flows of a finaneial instrument will fluenaate beeause of changes in marker interest rares. The Company's
exposure to the tisk of changes in market interest rares relates primarily to the Company's long-term debrt obligations with floating interest rates,

i) Liabilitics

The company has only fived rare borrowings which are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subjecr to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since

neither the carrying amount nor the futuee cash lows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

ii) Assets

The company’s fixed deposits, interest bearing security deposits and loans are earried at fived rate. Therefore not subject to interest sate sk as defined in Ind AS 107,
since neither the carying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

b) Price risk

The Company’s exposare o price risk arises from investments held and dassified as FVIOCL “T'o manage the price risk ansing from investments, the Company

diversifies 1 portfolio of assets.

"Semsétivity analy.is

Profic or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company’s profit for the periods -

Particulars

Price sensitivity

Price increase by (5 *u)- FVTOCT
Price deerease by (5°0)- FVTOCT

32 Capital management
(a) Risk management

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

3,718.70
(3718703

The Company’s eapital management objectves are to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as-a going concern as well as to provide a balance berween financial
flesibility and balance sheet efficiency. Tn determining its eapital structure, Company considers the robustness of future cash flows, potential funding requirements for
gronvth opportunites and acquisivons, the cost of capital and ease of access to funding sources.

Management assesses the Company’s eapital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This tkes into
account the subordinaton levels of the Company’s varous elasses of debr. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments o it in the light of
changes in cconomic conditions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets, In order o maintain or adjust the capital stracture, the Company may adjust the

amount of dividends paid o shareholders, retura capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets o reduce debt.

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total borrowings 47 567.57 52 509.65
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (714.200 (B05.21)
Net debt 46,853.37 51,704.44
Total equity 78,420,117 68,135.20
Nert debt to equity ratio 0.60 0.76

{This spece fds beer dntentionally &t blandk)
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13 Diselosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Aet, 20067) 18 as under:
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1) the principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at .30 17.41

the end of cach accounting year;

i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts Nl Nil
of the payment made o the supphier beyond the appomted day during each acebunting year;

it} the amount of interest due and payable for the peniod of delay in making payment Nil Nl
{which have been paid bur beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interese specified under this et

) the amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year; Nil Nil
and
v} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even i the succeeding years, Nil Nil

until such date when the interest ducs as above are actually paid to the small enterprisc, for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

The above information regirding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company. The same has been relied upon by the auditors.

34 Segment reporting
In line with the provisions of Tnd AS 108 - operanng segments and bass the review of operations being done by the senior Management, the
operations of the Company fall under business of leasing of real estate activitics. The Company operates within India and does not have
operations in economic environments with different risks and returns. Tlenee, 1t1s considered operating in single geogeaphical scgment.

35 Contingent liabilitics and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Income tax (Assessment year 2000-10))* 1,046.70 1,046.70
Income tax (Assessment year 20010-11) 1,694.42 1,694.42
Income tax (Assessmoent year 2011-12)% 1,796.57 1,796.57
Income tax (Assessment year 201 2-13) =%+ 805,08 805.08
Seevice 1ax (for Financial Year 2007-08 w0 2009-10) T67.07 T67.07
Service tax (for Financial Year 2011-12) 60.76 60.76

(a) Income Tax
*Assessment Year 2009-10
The Assessing Officer (*A(Q)) had made disallowance of mterest under seetion 24(b) of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961, tax impact of T 1046.70 lacs.
The Company had preferred an appeal before CIT(A), who further enhanced the disallowanee. Against this, the Company filed an appeal
before Tneome Tax Appellate Tribunal (TTAT'), who restired the matter to Ale of Ld. CIT(A) for issuing a fresh notice and decide afresh in
accordance with law, after verifying the facts. The matter is currently pending before CIT (A).
**k Assessment Year 2010-11
AO. had disallowed the interest u/s 24 (b) of Tncome Tax Act, tax impact of T 1,694.42 lacs. The Company had preferred an appeal before
CIT(A) who dismissed the appeal of the Company. Against this, the Company filed an appeal before Tneome Tax Appellate Tribunal (T1417),
who set aside the matter back to the AO for verification of faces of the case and allow the elaim of deduction in accordance with the provisions
of section 24(b) of the Act. ITowever, the Company on a conservative basis, has disclosed the said amount as contngent liability,
##k Assessment Year 2011-12 & 2012-13
AO. had disallowed the interest under scetion 24(b) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the assessment year 2011-12 and 2012-13, the tax impact
of ¥ 1,796.57 lacs and Rs. 805.08 Lacs respectively. The Company had preferred an appeal before CTT(A) who allowed the assessee’s appeal.
Against the orders of CIT(A), the department had fled appeals before Tncome Tax Appellate Tribunal (TTATY, who have disposed of the
appeals on December 16,2019, and ser aside the matter back to the fle of the Assessing Officer for verification of facts of the case and allow
the claim of deduction in accordance with the provisions of section 24(b) of the Act. [Towever, the Company on a conservative basss, has
disclosed the said amount ag contingent liabilicr.

(b) Service Tax
During the carlier years, the Company received an order from Commissioner of Serviee tax demanding serviee tax liability amounting to Rs T
827.83 lacs (which constitutes service tax liability amounting to ¥ 413.92 lacs along with 100% penalty amounting to T 413.92 lacs) and interest
thereon (Interest on liability may be determined as and when the service tax liability 18 actually finalized) on denial/recovery of Cenvar credit
(being the credit of service tax pad on construction services) utilized against out put service( Le, Rental Income for finanaal Year 2007-08 to
2009-10 and financial year 2011-12). The Company had filed an appeal along with stay application with respect to the aforesaid Commissioner
of Service tax's order to higher authosity .. Customs, Vixase & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT).

During the current year, CHSTA'T has passed the order in favour of the Company. Further, there is no intdmation as to whether the department
has fAled furcher appeal wath the High Court. Tlowever, the Company on a conservative basis, has disclosed the said amount as comtngent
liability.

(¢) Guarantees
There are no guarantees issued by Company on behalf of loan taken by others.

1. (d) Capital commitments
Sig Estimated amount of commutments on capital account as on March 31, 202013 T 343 lacs (March 31, 2019 ¥ 28.93 lacs).
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36 I the npiniun of the board of dircctors, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at
least equal (o theamount at which they are stated in the Balanee Sheet and provisions of all known habilities have also been made

37 Al loans, guarantees and securitics as disclosed in respectve schedules/ notes are given for business purposes.

38 In accordance with the provisions of sceton 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company had constinared a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Comumittee. Tn terms, with the provisions of the said Aet, the Company was required to spend a sum of
R 25300 laes (March 31, 2019: I234.25 lacs) towards CSR activitics durmg the year ended March 31, 2020, The details of amount paid by the
Conmany 1 as follows refer note 39);

Particulars Amount Paid Amount vet to be Paid Tatal
March 31, 2020 :

Donanon made for construction/ acquisition of assets = E
Duonation made for education, sanitation and healtheare activities 253.00 - 253.00

March 31, 2019 :
Donation made for construction/ acquisition of assers - o
Donation made for education, sanitation, sports, and environment a 234,25 - 234.25

39 Related party disclosures
Information required ro be disclosed under Ind AS 24 on " Related party disclosures”

i) Related parties where control exists

a) Ultimate holding company
DLIF Cyber City Developers Limited

b) Holding Company
Rachmiond Park Property Management Services Limited (the immediate holding company)

c¢) Entity having joint control over the holding company
DLF Linuted
Reéen Diamond Privare Lamited

d) Additional related party as per the Companies Act, 2013
Holding company of the entity having joint control over the Company's holding company
Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited

i) Related parties with whom there were transactions during the year
a) Ultimate holding company
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited

b) Entity having joint control over the holding company
DLF Limited

c) Fellow subsidiary company
DLIF Power & Services Limited )
DLIF Assets Limited (Formerly DLEF Assets Private Limited)
Paliwal Real Estate Timiced

d) Subsidiary of entity having joint control over the holding company
DLE Home Developers Limited
Lodhi Property Company Limited
DLEF Reereational Foundaton Limited
Galleria Properry Managemient Services Private Limited
DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited

¢) Key managerial personnel (KMP) or enterprises under the control of KMP of entity having joint control over the holding company or
their relatives at any time during the year

Rod Reeail Pve Lirmted

DLIF Foundation

DLIF Queab Enclave Complex Medical Charitable Trust

DLF Queab Enclave Complex Education Charitable T'rust

Mr. Ray Kumar jain (Nominee dircetor all July 17, 2019)

Nr. Santosh Kumar Garg (Independent director all July 17, 2019)

M. Surinder Singh Chawla (Independent director ll July 17, 2019)

(Thix spasie Duzs been intentionally bft blank, )
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A

41

43 4

During the current year, the Company has charged the Common Area Mamtenance (“CAM?) tevenue (included under the head “Revenue from
Operatnons”™) from tenants on provisional basis, based on management’s estmate of cost mcurred. Tlowever, post the yeir-end, the Company will
obtair an independent party certificate of actual expenditure ineurred towards mamienanee charges for the year ended March 31, 2020. The
management beheves that no materal adjustments will arse in CAM revenue which will affeet the carrent perdod fnancial statements.

Asat March 31; 2019, the Company had given unsceured loans bearing interest of 11.50% per annum to group companies of DLI Limited amounting
to T 81,080.24 Incs (including interest recoverable of T 12,262.49 laes). As per the terms of Share Purchase and Sharcholder Agreement (YSPSTTA™),
DLF Limited had eommitted to repay these loans over a masimum period of 180 days from Dicembier 26, 2017 e 6l June 24, 2018, The Company
has entered nto "Amended and Restated Loan Agrecment” dated December 28, 2018 with the said borrowers wherein the partics have ageeed that
merest shall also be payable on the outstanding interest amountng to I14),244.70 lacs as at Seprember 30, 2018 and the entire loan shall be repaid by
September 3, 2019,

Further, m éase of default n payment of quartery interest within 15 days from the end of the relevant guarter, addinonal interese of 2% per annum
shall be payable from last date of the relevant quarcer till the date of payment. Furthermore, rate of interest has been agreed w be enhaneed to 14% per
anmnum w.e B Apal 1, 2019, Further, subsequent to the year end, DL Limited has given corporate guarantee against these loans.

Pursuant to the above, the group companies of DLE Limited have repaid all their respective outstanding loans including interest acerued 61l Seprember
30, 2019,

In the earlier years, the Company had issued rated, listed, redeemable 10.90% Non-Convernble Debentures ("NCDs™) amounting to T 52,500 lics of
the face value of T 10 cach on private placement basis for its general corporate purposes and refinancing of its then existing debt. These NCDs were
secured by way of pari-passu charge on the immaovable property owned by the Company and were to be redeemed on November 20, 2021, with an
option available with the Company 1o redeem these NCDs atany time before the redemption date but not earlier than May 21, 2019,

On May 22, 2019, the Company has exercised its right to redeem these NCDs by delivering a prior written notice to the debenture trustee.
Consequently, these NCDs have been delisted from Bombay Stock Fxchange’s (BSI) poreal wee.l. June 25, 2019. On the date of redemption;, the
Company has transferred the balance lying in Debenture Redempion Reserve amounting to T 13,125 lacs to General Reserve.

The redemption of above NCDs were fnanced out of the proceeds recerved from bank loan amounting (o ¥ 52,500 lacs on May 20, 2019, details of
which are given under note 15.

Pursuant (o resolution passed by Board of Dircetors in their meeting held on September 24, 2019, read with the approval of the members vide special
resolution dated November 20, 2018, the Company acguired 63,000,000 5% Non-Cumulatve Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(“OCRPS") of face value T 100 cach of Paliwal Real Fstare Limited (“Paliwal™), a fllow subsidiary company from DLI Cyber City Developers
Limited for a consideradon ¥ 65,000 lacs on the basis of fair valuation report obtaned from an independent valuer, relevant terms of which were as

- QCRPS shall, ar the opton of Paliwal, be either converted into 10 equity shares of * 10/- cach, at any fime on or before 10 years from the date of
allotment, at pat

= QCRPS shall rank for dividend in priority to the equity shares,

= QCRPS shall in winding up be enutled ro rank, as regards cepaymient of eapial, n prionty to cquity shares bur shall not be entitled o any farther
participation in

- (CRPS shall not carry any voting rights except as provided under the provisions of Section 47 of the Actand Articles of Association of the

Subsequendy, Board of Dircetors of the Company; in theie meting held on March 18, 2020, passed a resolution for amendment of following terms of
- It shall now be compulsonily convertible into 10 cquity shares of T 10 cach at any time on or before 10 years from the date of allotment, at par at the
option
of Paliwal.
- It shall now be ealled as 5 » Non- Cuamulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares.

In accordance with provisions of Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments” and Ind \S 32 “Iinancial instruments”, the Company has classified the above
instrument as “liquity Instrument” and has measured the same at fair value through Other comprehensive income during the year ended March 31,
2020 and has aceordingly, recogmsed 4 gain of T 50.13 lacs (ner of deferred tax of T 14.87 lacs) through other comprehensive income as ac March 31,
2020:

Pursuant to resolution passed by Board of Directors in their mecting hdld on September 24, 2019, read with the approval of the members vide special
resolution dated November 20, 2018, the Company acquired 6,730,000 0.01% Compulsonly Convertible Preference Shares (CCIPSY) of face value of
T U cach of DLF Agsets Limited ("DAL", a fellow subsidiary) from DLF Cyber City Developers Limited for a consideration T 8,991,248 lacs on the
basis of valuation report obtained from an independent valuer. Further, cach CCPS shall be converted inta 10 equity shares of T 10 each of DAL but
nol later than May 24, 2025:

In aceordance with provisions of Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments” and Ind AS 32 “Financial mstruments”, the Company has classified the above
mstrument as “Hquity Instrument” and has measured the same at fair value through Other comprehensive income and has accordingly, recognised a
gtin o T 245.10 laes (ner of deferred tax of 72,71 Taes) through other comprehensive incomie,

Subsequent to the year end, Richmond Park Property Management Serviees Limited(“transferor Company™) has filed a Scheme of Amalgamation with
the Company before National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh on May 04, 2020 which s sull under comsideration, Accordmgly, impact of the
same has not been given m these Ind AS finaneial statements.




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stited)

45 In accordance with provisions of Tnd AS 109 “Financial Instriments”, the Compiny has accounted for modification af liability 1 respect of seeurity
deposits received from tenants due to change i estimated lease term and bas aceordingly, computed revised estimated value of the financial liabil ly
diseounted at orginal offective interest rate and adjnsted the difference between the existing vithue of hability and revised lability amounting o
12867 lacs in the Statement of Profit and Toss.

46 The Company 15 engaged in the business of leasing and maintenance of shopping mall, Due o the outbreak of GOVID-19 globally and 10 Tndia,
which was declared as a pandemic by the World [ealth Organisation("W110"), there is an unprecedented Tevel of disruption on socio-cconomic frone
dernss the country, Globally, countrics and businesses are under Tockdown, Considering the severe health hazard associated with COVITD-19
panderme; the Government of India declared a lock down effective from Mareh 25, 2020 which was imitally ull Apnl 14, 2020 and later estended all
May 31, 2020 )

Fuarther, in complianee with the luckdown instructions sssued by the Ceneal and State Governments, the malls owned by the Company were impaeted.
The management based on best estimates, hag anticipated and given effect to impact on trade receivable, unbilled revenue and valuation of the
nvestment property, wherever applicable.

The Company has assessed the possible effects on the carrymg amounts of investment properties, reccivables including unbilled recewvables and other
financial / nem finaneial assets and labilites based on various internal and external factors upro the date of approval of financial statements. The
Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used (in consultation with management’s expert valuers) and based on current
estimates, expects that the careying amount of these assets will be recovered, Further, the management has made initial assessment of impact on
business and financial risks on account of COVID-19.

Basis above, management has estimated its future eash fows for the Company which indicares no major change i the financial performance as
estimated prior to COVID-19 impact and henee, the Company believes that there 1s no wmpact on its ability to continue as going concern and meeting
its Habilities a5 and when they fall duc, Mowever, dug to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to idennfy
significant uncertainties in future periods, if any, The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ from that esimated as at
the date of approval of these financial statemnts.

47 There are no rransactions of loans and advances to subsidiaries, associate firms/ compames i which dircctors are interested.

48 There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans where there is no repayment schedule or repayment beyond seven vears or no inlerest or
mterest below the prevailing bank rate as per section 186 of the Companies et 2013,

49 The figures of previous year have been reclassified/ vegrouped for better presentation in the financial statemcnts and to conform to the current year's
classifications/ disclosures.
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